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Attorney Mohammad Ali Walid Hamdallah Al-Hiyasat



Message from the Chairman,
Esteemed Shareholders,
Peace and blessings be upon you,

On behalf of myself and the members of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to welcome you to the
forty-fourth General Assembly Meeting, and to present the Annual Report on the company’s activities
and financial performance for the year 2024.

Founded in 1983, the company was the first pioneer in financial leasing, and is currently one of the
largest companies in this sector. The company has consistently pursued its objectives to achieve the
best possible results. By the end of 2024, the company recorded net profits after tax and provisions
of JOD 7,576,051, compared to JOD 6,172,849 at the end of 2023. Total assets amounted to JOD
148,021,533 at the end of 2024, compared to JOD 119,004,518 at the end of 2023, reflecting a 24.4%
growth

Total shareholders’ equity reached JOD 54,583,344 at the end of 2024, compared to JOD 46,999,560
at the end of 2023, marking an increase of 16%. As at the end of 2024, return on capital stood at
45.9%, compared to 37.4% at the end of 2023.

Esteemed Shareholders,

The company remains committed to corporate governance regulations,ensuring their fullimplementation.
As a subsidiary of INVESTBANK, the company continues to adhere to the Central Bank’s directives
regarding the calculation of provisions in accordance with IFRS 9.

Throughout 2024, the company focused on serving diverse sectors to meet the demands of this vital
industry. It also continues to explore new markets, review its credit policies periodically, and enhance its
service offerings. This enables the company to provide tailored financial solutions, attract new clients,
and introduce new products while ensuring seamless and efficient transaction processing.

In conclusion, | would like to extend my sincere appreciation to my fellow Board members, the General
Manager, and all company employees for their dedicated efforts in achieving these results.

May God grant us success.

Tareq Mohammad Nazih Sakkijha
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Board of Directors Annual Report
Key Company Activities

The company’s activities involve all types of financing and for all segments of society, whether individuals
or SMEs.

Geographical locations of the company across the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, along
with the number of employees in each location

Ggographlcal Address Telephone No. A

Dispersion employees

General AbduI.Har.need Sharaf Street, Building No. 43, 06/5671720 35

Management Shmeisani

Head Office Located within the Head Office building 06/5671720 5

Collections and | Amman — Shmeisani — Abdul Hameed Badis

Legal Affairs Street, Building No. 37 06/5690532 27
Kheir Al-Din Al-Maani Street (Standards &

Dabouq Branch Metrology), Building No. 41 06/5373837 8

Sports City Near Sports City, opposite the Martyr's Monument,

Branch Building No. 109 06/5158816 5

Wihdat Branch Wthat — Opposite Al-Tayyibat Village — Car 06/4735666 6
Auction Area

Zarqa Free Located within the Free Zone — Zarga, Car Yard

Zone Branch near Bank Al Etihad 05/3826183 5

Aqaba Branch Lo.cated in Royal Jordanian Building No. 5, near 03/2042225 3
Princess Haya Roundabout

Total Number of 94

Employees

Capital Investment

The total capital investment amounted to JOD 54,583,344, constituting JOD 16,500,000 in paid-up
capital, JOD 4,125,000 in statutory reserves, JOD 33,926,185 in retained earnings, JOD 32,159 in
financial asset revaluation reserves.

Description of Subsidiaries, Their Business Activities, and Areas of
Operation

Subsidiary Name:

Jordan Facilities for Leasing Company

Legal Structure: Limited Liability Company

Primary Business Activity: Financial Leasing

Company Capital: JOD 2 million

Parent Company’s Ownership in the Subsidiary: 100%

Subsidiary Address and Employee Count:Located in Shmeisani — Head Office of Jordan Trade Facilities
Company,with no employees.

Subsidiary Branches and No. of Employees: None

Subsidiary-Owned Projects and Their Capital Investment: None

VY
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Statement of BOD member names and a Brief on each of them

TAMKEEN Leasing Co.

Mr. Tariq “Mohammad :
Nazih”“Mohammad Position CiElnmE @ U BeEre o

Representative Name Mamdooh” Sakkijha Directors

DRI OfBJgg"ng L Nationality | Academic Degrees and Date of Graduation

- Bachelor’s degree in public administration
and political science, AUB -1999

- Master’'s Degree in Business
Administration, 2002

Legal Entity

25/08/2020 16/6/1977 Jordanian

- 2011 — Present: Assistant General Manager — Consuming Banking,
INVESTBANK

- 2008 — 2011: Credit Card Product Development Manager — Retail

Professional Banking, Arab Bank

Experience - 2006 — 2008: Personal Loans and Credit Cards Sales Manager,
Standard Chartered Bank — Jordan

- 2005 — 2006: Consultant, Next Move — Jordan

- 2002 — 2006: Sales Manager, Spinneys Food Distribution Company

- Chairman of the Board, Tamkeen Leasing

Current Board - Chairman of the Board, Misk Pay

Memberships: - Chairman of the Board of Managers, Jordan Facilities Leasing
Company

*Inquire about the company through the Companies Control Department website

TAMKEEN Leasing Co.

Legal Entity Mr. Muhannad Zuhair " .
Representative Name | Ahmad Boka ERUY GTEITIET & {112 =R

DENE ofnglng UifE DOB Nationality Academic Degrees and Date of Graduation

| 25/8/2020 19/6/1975 | Jordanian | Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics, 2000

- 2012 — Present: Assistant General Manager — Commercial
Banking, INVESTBANK

- 2011 — 2012: Head of Corporate Banking, HSBC Bank — Jordan

- 2010 — 2011: Head of Commercial Banking, HSBC Bank —
Ramallah, Palestine

- 2009 — 2010: Head of Global Payments and Cash Management,
HSBC Bank — Jordan

- 2007 — 2008: Assistant Vice President — Business Banking,
Washington Mutual Bank, California

- 2006 — 2007: Assistant Vice President — Business Banking,
Wachovia Bank N.A., California

- 2005 — 2006: Assistant Vice President — Business Banking, Wells
Fargo Bank, California

- 2003 — 2005: Senior Analyst — Small and Medium Enterprises, Wells Fargo
Bank, California

Professional
Experience

- Vice Chairman of the Board, Jordanian Duty-Free Shops Company

- Member of the Board of Managers, First Duty-Free Company

- Member of the Board of Managers, Second Duty-Free General

Current Board Trading Company

Memberships: - Member of the Board of Managers, Jordanian Joint Investments
Company

- Vice Chairman of the Board of Managers, Jordan Facilities Leasing

Company

12 M Annual Report 2024

*Inquire about the company through the Companies Control Department website

TAMKEEN Leasing Co.

Legal E.ntlty MrshiibaiAhmed Giassan Position Member of the Board of Directors
Representative Name | Qasem
DOB

Date of Joining the
BOD

8/11/2022

Nationality | Academic Degrees and Date of Graduation

| 1/11/1984 | Jordanian |Bachelor’s degree in Financing — 2006

- 2022 — Present: Head of Financial Group and Human Resources,
INVESTBANK

- 2013 — 2022: Finance Department, INVESTBANK

- 2010 — 2013: Finance Department, Al Rajhi Bank

- 2006 — 2010: Finance Department, Capital Bank of Jordan

Current Board - Board Member, Tamkeen Leasing Co.
Memberships: - Board Member, Misk Pay

Professional
Experience

*Inquire about the company through the Companies Control Department website

4 Mr. Nasser Awwad Position Member of the Board of
Mohammad Al-Khaldi Directors
DEIE of;g:; ITEJ e DOB Nationality | Academic Degrees and Date of Graduation

| 25/8/2020 21/10/1966 | Jordanian | Bachelor’s in Electrical Engineering - 1989

- 2018 — Present: Consultant, Dead Sea Tourism and Real Estate
Investments Company

- 2013 — 2018: Executive Director, Dead Sea Tourism and Real
Estate Investments Company

- 2007 — 2013: Executive Director, Jordan Dubai Properties

- 2002 — 2007: Executive Director, Jordan Projects for Tourism

SEEONEINSGEGEREEN  Development

- 1998 — 2002: Executive Director, Abu Jaber Investment

- 1996 — 1998: Department Manager, Jordanian Services
Company (Zain)

- 1995 — 1996: Manager, Global One

- 1993 — 1995: Network Specialist, IBM — GBM

- 1989 — 1993: Officer, Royal Jordanian Air Force

- Board Member, Zara Investment Holding
- Board Member, Jordan Hotels & Tourism Company
- Board Member, Irbid Electricity Company

Current Board
Memberships

V
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University of Jordan Investment Fund

Legal Entity

Representative Mrs. Rima Abdallah Said Daher Position MO 22T @l
Name the BOD

Date of Joining the Date of Resignation : . Academic Degrees and
from the BOD Nationality Date of Graduation
25/8/2020 27/6/2024 10/7/1974 Bachelor's Degree in
Accounting, 1996

Jordanian

- 2019 — Present: Acting Director, Financial Funds Unit, University of
Jordan

- 2018 — 2019: Deputy Director, Financial Funds Unit, University of
Jordan

- 2017 — 2018: Assistant Director, Financial Funds Unit, University of

Professional Jordan

Experience - 2014 — 2017: Director, Accounts Department, University of Jordan

- 2011 — 2014: Acting Director, Accounts Department, University of
Jordan

- 2006 — 2011: Head of Financial Funds Division, University of
Jordan

- 2000 — 2006: Accountant, University of Jordan

Current Board
- None

Memberships

Dr. Ja_IaI Mohammad Yousef Al Position Member of BOD
Debei
Date of Joining the . : Academic Degrees and Date of

- Doctorate in Finance, 2009
- Master’s Degree in Accounting
2716/2024 17/07/1963 Jordanian and Finance, 1997
- Bachelor’'s Degree in Commerce and
Economics, 1986

- 2022 — 2024: General Manager, Jordan Press Foundation (Al-Rai
Newspaper)

- 2018 — 2022: Independent Consultant — Providing research and
advisory services to international organizations in the region

- 2015 — 2018: Chief Executive Officer (General Manager), Jordan
Industrial Estates Co.

- 1986 — 2015: Held various leadership positions at the Ministry of
Finance — Jordan, including Director of General Accounts, Director
of Public Debt, Director of Monitoring and Inspection, Director
of the Government Financial Management Information System
(GFMIS), Project Director of GFMIS in collaboration with USAID,
Financial and Economic Expert at the International Monetary Fund
(IMF) and the World Bank, participating in multiple IMF and World
Bank missions across Arab countries

- Lecturer on budget preparation, financial statement analysis for
publicly listed companies, and international accounting standards

- Chairman and member of several committees focused on financial
management reform and modernization at the Ministry of Finance, in

Professional

Experience

collaboration with multiple international institutions and organizations
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Current Board None
Memberships )
resigned members of the Board of Directors during 2024:

- Mrs. Rima Abdallah Said Daher / Representative of The University of Jordan Investment Fund
- Resignation Date: June 27,2024

Statement of the names of Executive Management members and a brief on each of them

Name Mr. Zaid Mahmoud Haj Qoul Position | General Manager

Da.te o DOB Nationality Academic Qualifications
Appointment

Master’s Degree in Finance (Investment
and Securities), 2019

Bachelor’s Degree in Financial and
Banking Sciences, 1996

2019 — Present: General Manager, Jordan Trade Facilities Company — Jordan
2014 — 2019: Executive Director, MVA International — Bahrain

2008 — 2014: Vice President, Banking Services Management, Arab Bank —
Bahrain

2006 — 2008: Head of Retail Banking, Standard Chartered Bank — Qatar
2002 — 2006: Product Manager, Standard Chartered Bank — Jordan

1997 — 2002: Sales Manager, HSBC Bank — Jordan

Date of : .
Appointment DOB Nationality

01/11/2020

17/11/2019 07/09/1974 Jordanian

Professional

Experience

Academic Qualifications

. Bachelor’s Degree in Accounting, Amman
1011271969 ‘ Jordanian ‘ AI-AhIi?/ya University, 1994
2020 — Present: Deputy General Manager, Jordan Trade Facilities Company —
Jordan
2016 — 2020: Head of Retail Credit Facilities, INVESTBANK
Professional 2006 — 2016: Head of Retail Risk Operations, Standard Chartered Bank
Experience 2000 — 2006: Assistant Vice President — Debt Insurance, JOFICO (Jordan
French Insurance Company)
1996 — 2000: Assistant Manager, Debt Insurance Department, Arab Life &
Accident Insurance Company

Finance Manager

Name Mr. Khaled Mohammad Position
Mahmoud Abu Rob

Date of . :
17/10/2004 | 22/08/1977 |  Jordanian | Bachelor’s in Accounting, 2001
2004 - Present: Finance Manager, Jordan Trade Facilities Company — Jordan
Professional 2003 — 2004: Accountant, Al-Mayadeen Contracting Establishment
Experience 2002 — 2003: Accountant, Arab Electrical Industries Company

2001 — 2002: Accountant, Al-Quwa Engineering Services Establishment

Mrs. Hanadi Khalil Youssef s Human Resources and
Name Position . .
Hammam Training Manager

Academic Qualifications

Da.te o DOB Nationality Academic Qualifications
Appointment

Bachelor’s in Business Administration,

16/05/2009 2001

28/02/1979 ‘ Jordanian

V
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2009 — Present: Human Resources and Training Manager, Jordan Trade Facilities
Company —Jordan
2004 — 2009: Workforce Planning Manager, Arab Bank

Name Mr. Amer Abdelgader Amin Position Compliance and Internal
Baidas Controls Unit Manager

Date of Resignation DOB Nationality : o
Appointment Date -- Academic Qualifications

25/06/2014 18/04/2024 15/06/1987 Bachelor's Degree in
Accounting, 2013

2014 — 2024: Head of Compliance and Internal Control Unit, Jordan Trade
Professional Facilities Company — Jordan

Experience 2010 — 2014: Accountant, Jordan Modern Ready-Mix Concrete Company /
Manaseer Group

Professional

Experience

Jordanian

Mr. Hazem Ghassan Hana "
Name Haddad Legal Department Manager

Academic Qualifications

Date of : :
Appointment D]0]=] Nationality

01/12/2016 |  11/06/1982 | Jordanian | Bachelor's degree in Law

2016 — Present: Director of Legal Department, Jordan Trade Facilities Company
Professional —Jordan

Experience 2010 — 2016: Attorney, Bank Audi

2008 — 2010: Attorney, Al-Najdawi Law Firm

Name AN Adgl e T Al Position Branches and Sales Manager
Mubaideen

Academic Qualifications

Date of . :
Appointment DOB Nationality

Bachelor’s Degree in Financial and Banking
Sciences, 2003

2021 — Present: Head of Branches and Sales, Jordan Trade Facilities
Company — Jordan

2015 - 2021: Client Relationship & Operations Manager, INVESTBANK
2012 — 2014: Head of Recruitment and Training Unit, Al-Nisr Al-Arabi
Insurance Company

2010 — 2012: Key Account Manager — Corporate Relations, Orange
2005 — 2009: Senior Sales Officer, Standard Chartered Bank

‘ 03/05/2021 14/06/1981 Jordanian

Professional
Experience

. Acting Manager of Compliance
Mr. Mohammad Amin Badr o 9 9 P
Position and Internal Controls
Atallah
Department

DEID @i DOB Nationality Academic Qualifications
Appointment

01/06/2020 | 09/02/1991 | Jordanian |  Bachelor's Degree in Accounting, 2013

2020 — 2024: Senior Internal Control Officer, in addition to overseeing the
Compliance and Internal Control Department, Jordan Trade Facilities Company
— Jordan

2017 — 2020: Senior Accountant, Al-Jazeera Agricultural Company

2013 — 2016: Accountant, Al-Jazeera Agricultural Company

Professional

Experience

Executive management individuals that resigned during 2024

N\
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- Mr. Amer Abdelgader Amin Baidas
- Resignation date: 18/4/2024

Major shareholders of the company’s issued shares, number of shares
owned by each, and the ownership percentage compared to the previous
year (for those holding 5% or more)

31/12/2023 31/12/2024

Name

| Tamkeen Leasing Co. | 16,139,603 | 97.81%

16,140,581 | 97.82% |

Competitive Position of the Company Within Its Sector, and it Share of the
Local Market and Foreign Markets

- The company provides its services through a commercial leasing system

- The company finances the purchase of vehicles, individual financing, real estate financing, and
supports the small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) sector.

- The financial leasing sector in Jordan is considered a key industry, complementing the banking
sector by offering tailored financing solutions that cater to the specific needs of customers.

- The company operates exclusively within Jordan, with no branches outside the country.

Dependence on Specific Suppliers and/or Key Clients (Locally and
Internationally)

The company is not dependent on any specific suppliers or key clients (locally or internationally) that
account for 10% or more of its total purchases or sales.

Government Protection or Privileges Granted to the Company or Its
Products Under Laws and Regulations

- The company and its products do not benefit from any government protection or privileges under
existing laws and regulations.
- The company has not obtained any patents or exclusive rights.

Government or International Organization Decisions Impacting the
Company’s Operations, Products, or Competitive Position

- There are no government or international decisions that have had a material impact on the
company’s operations, products, or competitive position

- International quality standards do not apply to the company.

Organizational Structure, Employee Count, and Qualification Categories

At the end of 2024, the company had 94 employees, compared to 85 employees at the end of 2023.

Employees are recruited according to the company’s internal labor regulations, based on vacancies
and business needs.

V
Annual Report 2024 @ 17



b. Employee Categories and Qualifications as of 31/12/2024

a- Organizational Structure (Parent Company and Subsidiary) Academic Qualification No. of Tasheelat Co. Employees

T Doctorate 0
1 =
g 22 = Master's 4
Rt :
; ek E Bachelor's 74
- =
"""" = Diplomas 7
________ i High School Certificate 5
IR Below High School 4
VS L E
VE& S - __% Total 94
o = 21N B
--------- ZEZ ESE c. Qualification programs and training courses for company employees
S =]
N EFN PPN S held during 2024
= BH EHE EHE T
ié fit igg :%g Ex\é No. of
< == - = iz E [~ . b
= K 2537 :
SYEESYSSS 2SS Ry — o Serial No Course Name Employees
z P SE £.5
e 2% Z5 £ 1 MS Excel 2016 (Basic & Advanced) 6
SEA £Z §_
REEEEEEE E § ?f _ 2 Foundational Course in Occupational Health and Safety 11
1 =<
§ g_é.j? 3 Leadership, Management, and Competency Development 15
E - - 4 Basic and Advanced Financial Accounting 2
1 b = =
e SE 5 Human Resources and Career Path Planning 1
§ = s” 6 Supervisor’s Skills Development 17
Q cn @« . Iy . . .
't s S %n 7 Credit Exposure Classification Guidelines 3
o < ]
E = 2 i 8 First Aid Training Course 17
= =
= 5 = 9 Syndicated Loans 1
= = = &
= £ 8 £ £ E“ 10 Forgery Detection in Signatures, Documents, and Records 1
= £ EE 11 Institutional and Regulatory Culture Enhancement Project in the 1
°g§ §" ” Bank and Subsidiaries —ToT Program
E gg‘ g2t Total 75
283 @ = g
=] - -
A Risks Facing the Company
=
=
«
There are no risks that the company has encountered or is expected to encounter in the coming year
- g 3 that would have a material impact on its operations.
g PRS-
= z 5“ Achievements and Significant Events During the Financial Year

- The Board of Directors held nine meetings during 2024.
- Achievement of targeted objectives.
- Implementation of corporate governance policies and procedures.

Board of
Directors for
Financial Leasing
General Manager /
Financial Leasing

Small and
Medium
Enterprises

A/ N/
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Below is the total facilities portfolio over the past five years:

71,560

Total Facilities Portfolio Including Profits (in 000’s)

94,327

118,309

149,654

190,157

Facilities Portfolio

94,327

71,560 I

2020 2021

118,309

2022

149,654

2023

190,157

2024

The following is a general breakdown of the Company assets during the
last 5 years, (in 000’s) of JOD:

Statement 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Facilities Portfolio — Net 53,464 70,938 86,872 109,131 137,363
Investment Portfolio 610 586 565 439 227
Other Assets 7,360 6,637 8,782 9,435 10,431
Total Assets 61,434 78,162 96,219 119,004 148,022

The following is a table showing shareholder equity, net profit for the year,
and Earnings Per Share for the last 5 years:

Shareholder Eg- Profit After Tax Return on
uity (in OOO’s)q and Provisions Shareholder
y (in 000’s) Equity
2020 32,888 2,641 8% 0.16
2021 36,819 3,931 10.7% 0.24
2022 40,821 4,000 9.8% 0.24
2023 46,999 6,172 13.1% 0.37
2024 54,583 7,576 13.9% 0.46
Shareholder Equity
54,583
46,999
40,821
32888 36,819 I I
4242 4243 4244 4245 4246

Financial Impact of Non-Recurring Transactions During the Fiscal Year
and Not Included in the Company’s Main Activity

There were no financial impacts from non-recurring transactions during 2024 that fall outside the
company’s core business activities

Time Series Data for Profits, Losses, Distributed Dividends, Shareholders’
Equity, and Stock Prices Over the Past Five Years

The following is a table related to the volume of debt and debt to equity
ratio for the last five years:

Year Debt (in 000’s)

Equity (in 000’s)

Debt / Equity

2020 25,567 32,888 %78

2021 38,343 36,819 %104

2022 52,282 40,821 %128

2023 67,796 46,999 144%

2024 88,258 54,583 %162
Py
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Year 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Net Profit before Tax and Provisions (in 000’s) 4.692 5.959 8,110 9,474 10,814
of JOD
Profit After Tax andJF(’)rgwsmns (in 000’s) of 2.641 3.931 4,000 6,172 7576
Distributed Dividends (in 000’s) of JOD - - - - -
Net Shareholder Equity (in 000’s) of JOD 32,888 | 36,819 | 40,821 | 46,999 | 54,583
Share Price (JOD) 1.150 1.260 1.360 1.430 1.56

No cash dividends being distributed during 2024

Annual Report 2024




Net Profit Before Tax and
Provisions (in 000's)

10,814
9,474
8,110
5,959
4,692 I
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Net Profit After Tax and Provisions

Developments, Future Plans, and Board Expectations

The company’s management aims to enhance, diversify, and expand its operations to maximize returns

through the following strategies:
- Increasing market share in the local market.

- Diversifying the company’s product portfolio by introducing new financial products to reach a broader

segment of the Jordanian market.

- Continuing to invest in human capital development through specialized training programs.

Audit Fees for the Parent Company and Subsidiaries

- Audit fees paid to PwC amounted to JOD 15,000

- Audit fees for the subsidiary, Jordan Facilities Leasing Company, amounted to JOD 2,000

Number of Securities Owned by Board Members Who Served During 2024

No. of Shares

31/12/2023 | 31/12/2024 | Controlled by

BOD Member Name Position | Nationality

(in 000's) 7,576
6,172
3,931 4,000
2,641 I I
2020 2021 2022 2023

Financial Position Analysis and Company Performance for the Fiscal Year

2024

Indicators 31/12/2023 31/12/2024
1 Stock Turnover Ratio 0.034% 0.148%
2 Return on Investment (ROI) 5.2% 5.1%
3 Return on Equity (ROE) 13.1% 13.9%
4 Return on Paid-up Capital 37.4% 46%
5 Liquidity Ratio 156% 151%
6 Profitability Ratio 37% 46%
7 Debt Ratio 144% 162%
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Mr. Tarek Mohammad Nazih
Sakka Jahha

Mr. Mohannad Zuhair Ahmed
Boka

Ms. Hiba Ahmed Qasem

Representatives of Tamkeen
Leasing Company

BOD
Chairman

Deputy
Chairman

Member

Jordan

Jordan

Jordan

Jordan

None

None

None

16,139,603

None

None

None

16,140,581

Ownership
and Names
of Companies

Any of the
BOD Members

None

None

None

None

Ms. Rima Abdullah Saeed Al-
Zaher

Board Member until June 27,
2024

Representative of The
University of Jordan
Investment Fund

Member

Jordan

Jordan

None

77,000

None

77,000

None

None

Mr. Nasser Awad Mohammad
Al-Khalidi

Member

Jordan

10,000

10,000

None

Dr. Jalal Mohammad Youssef
Al-Dabbai

Member

Jordan

None

10,000

None
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Number of Securities Owned by Senior Management Members Who

Served in the Company During 2024

and
Names of
Companies

31/12/2023 | 31/12/2024 | Controlled by
Any of Senior

Position Nationality

Benefits, Compensation, and Travel Expenses for the Chairman and Board
Members

Compensation Annual Total Annual

Bonuses Benefits

BOD Member Name Position for BOD
meetings

Mr. Tareq Mohammad Nazih Chairman of

Sakkijha
Representative of Tamkeen
Leasing Company

the Board of
Directors

5,000

5,000

10,000

Mr. Mohannad Zuhair Boka Deputy
Representative of Tamkeen Chairman 5,000 5,000 10,000
Leasing Company

Ms. Hiba Ahmed Qasem Member
Representative of Tamkeen 5,000 5,000 10,000
Leasing Company

Ms. Rima Abdallah Said
Daher, until 27/6/2024 Member
Representative of The 1,667 5,000 6,667
University of Jordan
Investment Fund

Mr. Nasser Awad Mohammad | Member

Al-Khaldi 5,000 5,000 10,000

Dr. Jalal Mohammad Youssef
Al Debei (Since 27/6/2024)

Member 3,333 - 3,333

Management
Members
Mr. Zaid Mahmoud Haj Qoul General Jordan None None None
Manager
Mr. Hussam Salah Hassan Deputy
o General Jordan None None None
Amawi
Manager
Mr. Khaled Mohammad Finance Jordan None None None
Mahmoud Abu Rob Manager
Human
Ms. Hanadi Khalil Youssef Resources
. Jordan None None None
Hammam and Training
Manager
Mr. Amer Abdelgader Amin Compliance
. and Internal
Baidas Controls Jordan None None None
Resigned (April 18,2024) Manager
Legal
Mr. Hazem Ghassan Hanna Department Jordan None None None
Haddad
Manager
Mr. Ghaith Adel Zakaria Al- Branches
. and Sales Jordan None None None
Mubaideen
Manager
Acting
Mr. Mohammad Amin Badr Manager of
Atallah Compliance Jordan None None None
Appointed May 1, 2024 and Internal
Controls

Number of Securities Owned by Relatives of Board Members and Senior
Management Executives

There are no shares registered under the names of relatives of Board Members.

There are no shares registered under the name of companies controlled by any Board Member.
There are no shares registered under the names of relatives of Senior Management Executives.
There are no shares registered under the name of companies controlled by any Senior Management
Executive.
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- No financial or non-financial rewards were granted to the Board Members beyond what has been

stated above

- No Board Member received any undisclosed benefits through their role in the company, whether

monetary or in-kind, and whether for themselves or any related party during 2024
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Benefits, Compensation, and Travel Expenses for Senior Executive
Management in 2024

Total Annual Annual
Name Incentives Total
Salaries Bonuses

Mr. Zaid Mahmoud Haj General 118,430.10 | 70,000.00 188,430.10
Qoul Manager
Deputy
Mr. Hu§sam Salah Hassan General 80.515.13 10,089.00 ) 90,604.13
Amawi
Manager
Mr. Khaled Mohammad Finance 36,676.38
Mahmoud Abu Rab Manager 32,592.38 4,084.00 )
Human
I\H/I:.er:;?]dl Khalil Youssef aRr?(j?rl:;?rﬁig 23.508.45 1,490.00 ) 25,088.45
e /\|_ TAS-HEELAT
i =) ")
M Amer Abdelgader | COTPlance o /\ . s
Amin Baidas (Resigned Controls 10,369.24 1,387.00 - o
as of 18/04/2024)
Manager
Legal
Mr. Hazem Ghassan Department | 26923.84 | 3,374.00 . 30,297.84
Hanna Haddad
Manager
. . Branches
Mr. Ghaith Adel Zakaria | |y ggjes 33,859.99 - 15,045.65 | 48,905.63
Al-Mubaideen
Manager
Mr. Mohammad Amin Badr | Acting Governance Re pO I’t
Atallah (Appointed as of | Manager of |,y 556 41379 00 13,853.83
01/05/2024) | Compliance T T - T
and Internal
Controls

Donations and Grants Disbursed During the Fiscal Year
The company did not disburse any donations or grants during 2024.

Contracts, Projects, and Commitments with Affiliated, Sister or Subsidiary
Companies, or with the BOD Chairman or members, or the General
Manager or any of the company employees or their relatives

* The company has entered into an agreement for the storage of archived files at the warehouses
of Al Istithmari Supply Chain Finance Company (AL IMDAD), a strategic affiliate owned by
INVESTBANK, with a total value of JOD 13,920 for the year 2024

* The company has also signed a lease agreement for its management office with INVESTBANK,
valued at JOD 28,000 annually. INVESTBANK owns Tamkeen, which in turn owns the company.

e Aside from the aforementioned agreements, the company has not entered into any contracts,
projects, or commitments with subsidiaries, affiliates, related parties, the Chairman, Board members,
the General Manager, employees, or their relatives.

Contribution of the Company to Environmental Protection and Local
Community Service

The company did not undertake any initiatives related to environmental protection or local community
service during 2024.
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M Annual Report 2024 Annual Report 2024



Information and Details on Implementation of Corporate Governance
Regulations and Guidelines

Jordan Trade Facilities Company is committed to adopting corporate governance principles and
regulatory frameworks, continuously enhancing its policies, regulations, and governance systems in
accordance with the guidelines of the Securities Commission and other regulatory authorities. The
company adheres to the Corporate Governance Regulations for Listed Companies of 2017, ensuring
the highest standards of transparency and disclosure. The company is dedicated to implementing
governance regulations both in form and substance to achieve superior performance. It aims to embed
governance principles - emphasizing transparency, accountability, fairness, and the protection of
shareholder interests alongside other stakeholders - into a sustainable framework across all managerial
levels.

In alignment with governance requirements, the company has developed comprehensive policies and
systems. To effectively manage risks, the Board of Directors has established specialized committees
with clearly defined responsibilities, ensuring that all corporate activities are appropriately overseen.
These committees operate under the authority and supervision of the Board, which, despite delegating
certain powers, retains ultimate responsibility for their actions.

Names of Current and Resigned Board Members During the Year,
Indicating Whether Each Member is Executive, Non-Executive, or
Independent or non-Independent

Executive / Non- | ndependent

Member Name Position / Non- Membership

Executive Independent Status

Tamkeen Leasing Company

/ represented by Mr. Tareq Chzicr)n[:an Non-Executive In deN?errlm-dent I\(/I:grr;igtr
Mohammad Nazih Sakkijha P

Tamkeen Leasing Company

/ represented by Mr. Cﬁgipr) :Jrgn Non-Executive In deN((Je?w-dent I\(/I:g:r:(ta)re]tr
Mohannad Zuhair Boka P

Tamkeen Leasing Company i

/ represented by Mrs. Hiba Member Non-Executive In deNerz dent I\C/I:err:igtr
Ahmad Qasem P

Mr. Nasser Awad : Current
Mohammad Al-Khaldi Member Non-Executive Independent Member
University of Jordan Resigned
Investment Fund / Member Non-Executive Independent | Member as of

represented by Mrs. Rima

Abdallah Said Daher June 27,2024

Current
Member Non-Executive Independent | Member Since
June 27,2024

Dr. Jalal Mohammad
Youssef Al Debei
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Names of Corporate Board Member Representatives and Their
Classification as Executive, Non-Executive, or Independent

Executive / Non- Independent / Non-

Executive Independent SAEWE

Name of Legal Entity

Mr. Tareq Mohammad Nazih
Sakkijha — Representative of Non-Executive Non-Independent Current Member
Tamkeen Leasing Company

Mr. Mohannad Zuhair Boka —
Representative of Tamkeen Non-Executive Non-Independent Current Member
Leasing Company

Mrs. Hiba Ahmad Hassan
Qasem — Representative of Non-Executive Non-Independent Current Member
Tamkeen Leasing Company

Mrs. Rima Abdallah Said Daher
— Representative of University Non-Executive Independent
of Jordan Investment Fund

Resigned Member
as of 27/6/2024

Executive Positions in the Company and Names of Officeholders

Name of Executive Position Name of Office Holder

General Manager Mr. Zaid Mahmoud Haj Qoul
Deputy General Manager Mr. Hossam Salah Hassan Amawi
Finance Manager Mr. Khaled Mohammad Mahmoud Abu Al-Rub

Branches and Sales Manager Mr. Ghaith Adel Zakaria Al-Mubaideen

Human Resources and Training

Ms. Hanadi Khalil Youssef Hammam
Manager

Legal Department Manager Mr. Hazem Ghassan Hanna Haddad

Compliance and Internal Controls | Mr. Amer Abdelgader Amin Baidas (Resigned as of April 18,
Unit Manager 2024)

Acting Head of Compliance and Mr. Mohammad Amin Badr Attalla (Appointed as of May 1,

Controls Audit Unit 2024)
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All Board Memberships Held by Directors in Public Shareholding Audit Committee Chairman and Members, Along with Their Qualifications

Companies and Experience:
o Academic g :
Membership in the Board of Public Shareholding Position Qualification Brief on Experience
Member Name ;
Companies - 2019 — Present: Acting Director of the Financial
Funds Unit —The University of Jordan
; e i ; i - 2018 — 2019: Deputy Director of the Financial Funds
P 9 pany pany Abdullah Saeed - 2017 — 2018: Assistant Director of the Financial
Al-Zaher — Committee Funds Unit —The University of Jordan
Mr. Mohannad Zuhair Boka — Representative | Chair until | Bachelor's Degree | _ 5414 _ 2017: Director of the Accounting Department
of Universit June 27, in Accountin A g Lep
Representative of Tamkeen Leasing Company Duty Free Company of Jordan | 2024 g —The University of Jordan
Investment - 2011 —2014: Acting Director of the Accounting
Fund Department — The University of Jordan
Mrs. Hiba Ahmad Hassan Qasem — Not member in any Board of Public shareholding - 2006 — 2011: Head of Financial Funds Division — The
Representative of Tamkeen Leasing Company | company University of Jordan
- 2000 — 2006: Accountant — The University of Jordan
- Zara Investment Holding Company - 2022 — 2024: General Manager — Jordan Press
Mr. Nasser Awad Mohammad Al-Khalidi - Jordan Hotels and Tourism Company Foundation (Al-Rai)
- i ici istributi - 2015 —2018: Chief Executive Officer (General
Irbid Electricity Distribution Company Manager) — Jordan Industrial Estates Company
. . - Over 28 years in the Jordanian Ministry of Finance
Ms. Rima Abdallah Said Daher — in several senior roles, including Director of General
Representative of University of Jordan|Not member in any Board of Public shareholding éﬁ%%?g:%ﬁ‘ﬁg"gg/ee?hMgr:‘t'tgirr']g%ggﬂ\h”asnp:gcé'r%g’n?”d
Investment company Ph.D.in Finance Information System (GFMIS)
Fund Dr Jalal Committee | Master’s Degree - Led the GFMIS project in collaboration with USAID
Mohammad Chair since | I Accounting and i i i i i
Youssef Al June 27 Finance - II\:/inan%:lal aFnd SC((I)I\I‘/I”O:I’)TIIC gxtpr)]erb\\;vltlr:jtge Iﬂternatlonal
; ; ; > - , , onetary Fun -) and the World Bank,
Dr. Jalal Mohammad Youssef Al Debei Not member in any Board of Public shareholding Dobaie 2024 Bachelor's Degree | participating in multiple missions to various Arab
company Ecggmrgsrce and countries
- fL_ecturer at the IMF and Arab Monetary Fund in public
. . inance
Corporate Governance Liaison Officer: : . o
- Lecturer in public budget preparation, financial
statement analysis for public shareholding
Mr. Mohammad Amin Badr Attalla — Acting Compliance and Internal Audit Unit Manager companies, and international accounting standards
- Chair and m?mtf>er of ?(tapl/er'?/ll_cprtnmit}el:e.s for financial
P . management reform at the Ministry of Finance, in
Names of Board Committees: collaboration with various international institutions
. . ; - 2022 — Present: Head of Financial Group and Human
a- Audit Committee M. Hiba, Resources — INVESTBANK
b- Nomination and Remuneration Committee 8asem it Mermb Bachelor's degree | - 2013 —2022: Finance Department — INVESTBANK
- i epresentative ember L ;
8 g_o‘:(emznée Colr_“m'tteg " of Tarmicea in Financing - 2010 — 2013: Finance Department — Al Rajhi Bank
- Risk and Compliance Committee Leasing i B - . B ;
Company 38%%n 2010: Financial Department — Capital Bank of
- 2018 — Present: Advisor — Dead Sea Tourist and Real
Estate Investments Company
- 2013 — 2018: Executive Director — Dead Sea Tourist
and Real Estate Investments Company
- 2007 — 2013: Executive Director — Jordan Dubai
Properties Company
Mr. Nasser , - 2002 — 2007: Executive Director — Jordan Projects for
Awad Member E]alglr(]aeclgicmPegree Tourism Development
I}\(/Iﬁgl?drpmad Al- Engineering - 1998 — 2002: Executive Director — Abu Jaber

Investment Company

- 1996 — 1998: Division Manager — Jordanian Services
Company (Zain)

- 1995 — 1996: Manager — Global One Company
- 1993 — 1995: Network Specialist — IBM — GBM
- 1989 — 1993: Officer — Royal Jordanian Air Force

A/ N/
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Chairperson and Members of Board Committees

* Governance Committee

Name
Mr. Nasser Awad Al-Khaldi

Position

Committee Chairman

Mr. Mohannad Zuhair Boka — Representative of Tamkeen
Leasing Co.

Member

Mrs. Rima Abdallah Daher — Representative of The University of
Jordan Investment Fund

Member until 27/06/2024

Dr. Jalal Mohammad Al Debei

Member since 27/06/2024

* Risk and Compliance Committee

NETE
Mr. Nasser Awad Al-Khaldi

Position

Committee Chairman

Mr. Tareq Mohammad Nazieh Sakkijha — Representative of
Tamkeen Leasing Company

Member

Mr. Mohannad Zuhair Boka — Representative of Tamkeen
Leasing Co.

Member

* Nomination and Remuneration Committee

NEE
Mr. Nasser Awad Al-Khaldi

Position

Committee Chairman

Mrs. Hiba Ahmad Hassan Qasem — Representative of Tamkeen
Leasing Company

Member

Mrs. Rima Abdallah Daher — Representative of The University of
Jordan Investment Fund

Member until 27/06/2024

Dr. Jalal Mohammad Al Debei

Member since 27/06/2024

¢ Audit Committee

Name

Ms. Rima Abdullah Al-Zaher — Representative of The University
of Jordan Investment Fund

Position

Committee Chair until
2716/2024

Dr. Jalal Mohammad Al-Dobaie

Committee Chair since
2716/2024

Ms. Rima Abdullah Al-Zaher — Representative of The University
of Jordan Investment Fund

Member

Mr. Nasser Awad Al-Khalidi

Member

Number of Meetings Held by Each Committee During the Year and

Attending Members

e Audit Committee

The Audit Committee held four (4) meetings during the year. The attending members for each meeting

were as follows:

Member Name

15t Meeting | 2™ Meeting | 3@ Meeting | 4" Meeting

30/1/2024 | 18/4/2024 | 22/7/2024 13/10/2024
Mrs. Rima Abdallah Daher (until June 27, Attended Attended ) i
2024)
Dr. Jalal Mohammad Al Debei (since June
27,2024) - - Attended Attended
Mrs. Hiba Ahmad Hassan Qasem Attended Attended Attended Attended
Mr. Nasser Awad Al-Khaldi Attended Attended Attended Attended

* Governance Committee

The Governance Committee held two (2) meetings during the year. The attending members for

each meeting were as follows:

Merber Narme 302008 41212024
Mr. Nasser Awad Al-Khalidi Attended Attended
Mr. Mohannad Zuhair Boka Attended Attended
Ms. Rima Abdullah Al-Zaher (until June 27,2024) Attended -

Dr. Jalal Mohammad Al-Dobaie (since June 27, 2024) - Attended

* Risk and Compliance Committee

The Risk and Compliance Committee held two (2) meetings during the year. The attending members

for each meeting were as follows:

Member Name

15t Meeting

17/04/2024

2" Meeting
13/10/2024

Mr. Nasser Awad Al-Khalidi Attended Attended
Mr. Tarek Mohammad Nazih Sakkajja Attended Attended
Mr. Mohannad Zuhair Boka Attended Attended

* Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee held two (2) meetings during the year. The attending

members for each meeting were as follows:

Member Name

15t Meeting

30/01/2024

2" Meeting
13/02/2024

Mr. Nasser Awad Al-Khalidi Attended Attended
Ms. Hiba Ahmad Hassan Qasem Attended Attended
Dr. Jalal Mohammad Al-Dobaie (since June 27, 2024) Attended Attended
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Number of Audit Committee Meetings with the External Auditor: Declarations

The Audit Committee met with the external auditor once during the year. This meeting was held 1- The Board of Directors confirms that there are no significant issues that may affect the continued
without the presence of any senior executive management members or their representatives. operations of the Bank during the financial year 2025

. . 2- The Board of Directors confirms its responsibility for the preparation of the financial statements,
Number of Board Meetings and Attending Members: and for implementing an effective internal control system in the Company.

The Board of Directors held nine (9) meetings during the year. The attendance details for each
meeting were as follows:

TAMKKEN Leasing Company.
1t Meeting | 2" Meeting | 3 Meeting | 4" Meeting | 5" Meeting | 6" Meeting | 7" Meeting | 8" Meeting | 9" Meeting iq “ i
Nazih” “Mohammad Mamdooh” Sakkijha

Name Position Signature

Mr.Tareq Mohammad Nazieh
Sakkijha — Representative of Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended -

Tamkeen Leasing Company TAMKKEN Leasing Company.

Represented by Mr. Muhannad Zuhair Chairman .
Mr. Mohannad Zuhair Boka — Ahmad BOka epu y

Representative of Tamkeen Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended
Leasing Company

Mrs. Hiba Ahmad Hassan TAMKKEN Leasing Company.
Qasem — Representative of Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Re prese nted by Mrs. Heba Ahmad Hasan Member

Tamkeen Leasing Company

Qasem
Mrs. Rima Abdallah Said - M .
Daher Representative of Mr. Nasser Awwad Mohammad Al-Khaldi Member
The University of Jordan Attended Attended Attended Attended R
Investment Fund (Until June
27,2024)

Mr. Nasser Awad Al-Khaldi Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended Attended

Dr. Jalal Mohammad Youssef / ’
Al Debei Board Member - - - - Attended | Attended | Attended | Attended | Attended Dr. Jalal Mohammad Yousef Al Debei Member
Since June 27,2024

Tareq Mohammed Nazih Sakkijha 3- The Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer attest to the accuracy
and completeness of the financial statements and the information of this report.
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Chairman CEO CFO

Tarig Mohammad Nazih . . Khaled Mohammad Abu
Sakkijha Mr. Zaid Mahmoud Haj Qoul Al-Rub

A N
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11 -64

Independent Auditor’s Report
To The Shareholders Of Jordan Trade Facilities Company
(Public Shareholding Limited Company)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Jordan Trade Facilities Company (the “Company”) and its subsidiary (together the
“Group”) as at 31 December 2024, and their consolidated financial performance and their consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as amended by the Central
Bank of Jordan instructions.

What we have audited

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise:

* the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024;

* the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

* the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity for the year then ended;

* the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

* the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statements in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan. We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code.

Annual Report 2024 M 39



Overview

Key Audit Matter Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement
in the consolidated financial statements. In particular, we considered where the directors made subjective
judgments; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions
and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk
of management override of internal controls, including among other matters, consideration of whether there
was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

We have designed the scope of the audit to perform sufficient procedures that enable us to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements as a whole, taking into account the Groups structure, accounting
processes, controls and business segments.

Key audit matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

\ Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

We performed the following audit procedures on the
The Group applies the Expected Credit Loss computation of the ECL included in the Group’s consolidated
model (ECL) on all its financial instruments financial statements for the year ended 31 December
measured at amortised cost in accordance 2024:
with IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” as
amended by the Central Bank of Jordan We assessed and tested the design and operating
instructions. effectiveness of the controls over the calculation of the
excepted credit losses model.
The Group exercises significant judgement
and makes a number of assumptions We tested the completeness and accuracy of the data used in
in developing its ECL models, which the calculation of ECL.
includes probability of default computation
separately for retail and corporate For a sample of exposures, we checked the appropriateness
portfolios, determining loss given default of the Group’s application of the staging criteria.
and exposure at default for both funded
and unfunded exposures, forward looking
adjustments, staging criteria and movement
between stages.

For defaulted exposures, the Group We involved our internal specialists to assess the following

exercises judgements to estimate the areas:

expected future cash flows related to

individual exposures, including the value of ¢ Conceptual framework used for developing the Group’s

collateral. impairment policy in the context of its compliance with the
requirements of IFRS 9 as amended by the Central Bank of

The Group’s impairment policy under IFRS Jordan instructions.

9 as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan ¢ ECL modelling methodology and calculations used to

Instructions is presented in notes (2 and 4) compute the probability of default (PD), loss given default

to the consolidated financial statements, (LGD), and exposure at default (EAD) for the Group’s

and which is related to the differences classes of financial instruments.

between IFRS 9 as should be implemented + Reasonableness of the assumptions made in developing

and what was implemented based on the the modelling framework including assumptions used

Central Bank of Jordan instructions, and the for estimating forward looking scenarios and significant

material accounting policies implemented increase in credit risk.

when calculating the expected credit loss. ¢ Recalculation of the expected credit losses for a sample of
the impaired financial assets at each stage.

Measurement of ECL is considered as < In addition, for the Stage 3 corporate portfolio, the

a key audit matter as the Group applies appropriateness of provisioning assumptions were

significant judgments and makes a number independently assessed for a sample of exposures selected

of assumptions in the staging criteria on the basis of risk and the significance of individual

applied to the financial instruments as well exposures. An independent view was formed on the levels

as in developing ECL models for calculating of provisions recognised, based on the detailed loan and

its impairment provisions. counterparty information available in the credit file. For the
Stage 3 retail portfolio, assumptions were independently
assessed for each product category and an independent
view was formed on the levels of provisions recognised at
each category level.

» We recalculated the provision for non-performing loans in
accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan Instructions
Number (47/2009).

* We compared the expected credit loss calculated in
accordance with IFRS 9 as amended by the Central Bank
of Jordan Instructions with the provision for expected
credit losses calculated in accordance with the instructions
of the Central Bank of Jordan No. (47/2009) and ensured
that the Group has recorded whichever is higher.

* We assessed the consolidated financial statement
disclosures to ensure compliance with IFRS 7 and IFRS
9 as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan Instructions.
We have also ensured completeness and accuracy of the
disclosures by verifying the information to accounting
records.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the other
information included in the Group’s annual report (but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon), which is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

N\
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other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information not yet received, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for
the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan instructions, and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s consolidated financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

* As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
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However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Group maintains proper accounting records which are consistent, in all material aspects, with the
accompanying consolidated financial statements. We recommend the General Assembly to approve them.
For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers “Jordan”

Omar Jamal Kalanzi
License No. (1015)

Amman, Jordan ok o j\h\‘v\ .
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2024

Assets
Cash on hand and at banks

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortised cost

Other debit balances

Right of use of leased assets

Investment properties

Assets foreclosed against defaulted loans
Property and equipment

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities

Bank overdrafts

Loans

Bonds

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Other provisions

Income tax provision

Total Liabilities

Shareholders’ Equity

Authorised, subscribed, and paid in capital
Statutory reserve

Financial assets valuation reserve
Retained earnings

Total Shareholders’ Equity

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Note 2024 2023
JD JD

5 2,649,387 2,283,955

6 227,323 219,590

7 137,363,339 109,130,502
382,277 366,812

8 277,320 362,072

9 - 218,966

10 2,773,776 2,720,158

11 173,589 79,108

12 38,151 51,844

18 4,136,371 3,571,511
148,021,533 119,004,518

13 6,991,751 9,210,050

14 77,105,919 58,585,957

15 4,160,000 -

8 280,966 364,628

16 1,606,266 1,083,509

17 319,486 360,514

18 2,973,801 2,400,300
93,438,189 72,004,958

19 16,500,000 16,500,000

19 4,125,000 4,125,000
32,159 24,426
33,926,185 26,350,134
54,583,344 46,999,560
148,021,533 119,004,518

The attached notes from 1 to 28 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROSIT OR LOSS AND OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Revenues and commissions from commercial financing,
Murabaha and finance lease

Other revenues
Deposit income
Total Revenues

Salaries, wages, and employees’ benefits
Other expenses

Other provisions (recovered from)

Provision for impairment of acquired assets
Depreciation of investment properties
Depreciation of right of use leased assets
Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets

Provision of expected credit losses of financial assets at
amortised cost

Finance expenses
Total Expenses

Profit for the Year Before Income Tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income that will not be
Subsequently Reclassified to Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss:

Net change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

Basic and diluted earnings per share from profit of the
period attributable to shareholders of the Company
(JD/Share)

Note 2024 2023
JD JD
20 19,978,976 16,304,737
21 1,341,249 1,111,286
130,644 84,247
21,450,869 17,500,270
22 (2,009,774)  (1,724,278)
23 (1,198,321)  (971,347)
17 (33,572) (64,536)
10 (2,997) -
9 (3,171) (22,753)
8  (98,134) (96,805)
11 (45,684) (50,397)
12 (15,063) (19,551)
7 (848,966) (809,691)
24  (6,558,754)  (5,076,908)
(10,814,436) (8,836,266)
10,636,433 8,664,004
18 (3,060,382)  (2,491,155)
7,576,051 6,172,849
7,733 5,432
7,583,784 6,178,281
26 0.459 0.374

The attached notes from 1 to 28 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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7,576,051

7,576,051

Profit for the year

Net change in financial assets

valuation reserve

7,733

7,733

Total comprehensive income for

the year

7,583,784

7,576,051

7,733

33,926,185 54,583,344

32,159

4,125,000

16,500,000

Balance as at 31 December

2023

40,821,279
6,172,849

20,177,285
6,172,849

18,994

4,125,000

16,500,000

Balance as at 1 January

Profit for the year

Net change in financial assets

valuation reserve

5,432

5,432

Total comprehensive income for

the year

6,178,281

6,172,849

5,432

4,125,000 24,426 26,350,134 46,999,560

16,500,000

Balance as at 31 December

* Use of the credit balance of the valuation reserve of financial assets through other comprehensive income is restricted in accordance with the

instructions of Jordan Securities Commission.

** The retained earnings as at 31 December 2024 include deferred tax assets amounted to JD 4,136,371 (JD 3,571,511 as at 31 December 2023) is

restricted in accordance with the instructions of Jordan Securities Commission (Note 18).

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2024

Note 2024 2023
Operating activities JD JD
Profit for the year before income tax 10,636,433 8,664,004
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of investment properties 9 3,171 22,753
Depreciation of right of use leased assets 8 98,134 96,805
Depreciation of property and equipment 11 45,684 50,397
Amortization of intangible assets 12 15,063 19,551
Gain on sale of property and equipment 21 (9,196) (685)
I(;:llrl"\son sale of assets foreclosed against defaulted 21 (20,272) (4,841)
Gain on sale of investment properties 21 (90,705) (31,719)
Expeqted credit losses provision of financial assets at 7 848,966 809,691
amortised cost
Provision for impairment of assets acquired against

. 10 2,997 -

outstanding debts
Other provisions (recovered from) 33,572 64,536
Deposit income (130,644) (84,247)
Finance expenses 6,558,754 5,076,908
Changes in working capital items:
Financial assets at amortised cost (29,302,147) (23,424,905)
Other debit balances (15,465) (70,571)
Other liabilities 440,781 281,245
_Cash flows used in operatl_ng act|V|t_|es before (10,884,874) (8,531,078)
income tax and other provisions paid
Income tax paid 18 (3,051,740) (2,329,853)
Other provisions paid 17 (74,600) (5,379)
Net cash flows used in operating activities (14,011,214) (10,866,310)
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment 11 (140,491) (42,917)
Purchases of intangible assets 12 (1,370) (21,650)
Proceeds from sale of assets foreclosed against 184,000 333,980
defaulted loans
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 306,500 141,000
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 9,522 746
Deposit income received 130,644 84,247
Net cash flows generated from investing activities 488,805 495,406
Financing activities
Bank overdrafts (2,218,299) 4,304,753
Net movement on loans 18,519,962 17,669,335
Bonds 4,160,000 (6,460,000)
Dividends paid (60) (1,396)
Lease liabilities paid 8 (119,507) (119,509)
Finance expenses paid (6,454,255) (5,026,788)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities 13,887,841 10,366,395
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 365,432 (4,509)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January 2,283,955 2,288,464
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 5 2,649,387 2,283,955
Non-cash transactions:
Right of use leased assets/lease liabilities 8 13,382 181,466
Transferred from financial assets at amortised cost to 10 463,353 357,069

assets foreclosed against defaulted loans

The attached notes from 1 to 28 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) General Information

Jordan Trade Facilities Company was incorporated on 13 March 1983 as a public shareholding limited
company under No. (179) with a share capital of JD 16,500,000 divided into 16,500,000 shares with a nominal
value of one JD for each share.

The main objectives of the Company are:

Carrying out financial leasing activities

Real estate financing

Granting loans and direct financing for consumer goods

Project financing

Finance leasing by Murabaha method in accordance with the provisions of Islamic Sharia
Financing family tourism trips

- Vehicle financing

- Project Management

- Issuing payment and credit cards of all kinds (provided that debit cards are issued by banks)
- Issuing personal cards that allow the holder to purchase

Obtaining guarantees and bank credits

The Group’s shares are listed on the Amman Stock Exchange.

The Group’s head office is located in Amman - the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, and its address is in
Shmeisani.

The Company is 97.8% owned by Tamkeen Leasing Company (the parent company) and the ultimate
parent company is Invest Bank - Public Shareholding Company whose shares are listed on the Amman

Stock Exchange. The Company’s financials statements are consolidated with the Ultimate Parent Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 January 2025.

(2) Material Accounting Policy Information

The principal material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2-1 Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS Accounting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the interpretations issued by the International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, which are adopted by the International Accounting Standards
Board, as amended by the Central Bank of Jordan’s instructions.

The main differences between the International Financial Reporting Standards for Accounting as they should
be applied and what has been approved by the Central Bank of Jordan are the following:

1- Some items are classified and presented in the consolidated statement of financial position, consolidated
statement of income and the consolidated statement of cash flows and the related disclosure, such as
credit facilities, interest in suspense, expected credit losses, Assets foreclosed against defaulted loans,
fair value levels, segments classification and disclosures related to risks and others, in accordance with
the requirements of the Central Bank of Jordan, its instructions and circulated guidance which might not
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include all the requirements of IFRS such as IFRS 7, 9 and 13.

2- Custom credit loss provisions are formed in accordance with the Central Bank of Jordan’s instructions
No (13/2018) Application of International Financial Reporting Standard No (9) dated June 6, 2018 The
essential differences are as follows:

(A) Debt instruments issued by the Jordanian government or guaranteed by it are excluded from
calculating expected credit losses

(B) When calculating credit losses against credit exposures, the results of calculation according to
International Financial Reporting Standard No (9) with the Central Bank of Jordan’s instructions No
(47/2009) dated December 10, 2009 are compared for each stage separately, and the most severe
results are taken

According to the Central Bank of Jordan’s instructions for classifying credit facilities and calculating the
impairment allowance No (47/2009) issued on December 10, 2009, credit facilities are classified into the
following categories:

Low-risk credit facilities are not subject to provisions:
These are credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

Granted to the Jordanian government and guaranteed by it, as well as to the governments of countries where
Jordanian banks have branches, provided that these facilities are granted in the same currency as the host
country

Secured by cash collateral of (100%) of the outstanding balance at any time

Guaranteed by an acceptable bank guarantee of (100%)

Acceptable credit facilities are not subject to provisions:
These are credit facilities that have the following characteristics:

1) Strong financial centers and sufficient cash flows

2) Documented by contracts and covered by acceptable guarantees according to the assets
3) Good sources of repayment

4) Active account movement and regular repayment of the principal and interest

5) Efficient management of the client

Credit facilities under supervision (require special attention) and are
subject to a minimum allocation ranging from (1.5% - 15%):

These are credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

1) The presence of receivables for a period exceeding (60) days and less than (90) days for the principal of
credit facilities and/or their interest

2) Exceeding the debit current balance to the ceiling set at a rate of (10%) or more for a period exceeding (60)
days and less than (90) days

3) Credit facilities that have been classified as non-performing credit facilities and have been removed from
the non-performing credit facilities framework under an asset schedule.

4) Acceptable credit facilities that have been restructured twice within a year

5) Credit facilities whose expiry date has elapsed for a period exceeding (60) days and less than (90) days
and have not been renewed

This is in addition to other conditions mentioned in detail in the instructions.
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Non-performing credit facilities:
They are credit facilities that have any of the following characteristics:

The following periods have passed since its maturity or the maturity of one of its instalments, the irregular
payment of the principal amount and/or interest or the rigidity of the overdraft account:

Percentage
Number of
Classification of the allocation
override days
for the first year

Substandard credit facilities From (90) days to (179) days 25%
Doubtful Credit Facilities From (180) days to (359) days 50%
Doubtful Credit Facilities From (360) days or more 100%

-The debtor who exceeds the granted ceiling by (10%) or more and for a period of (90) days or more

- Credit facilities that have expired for a period of (90) days or more and have not been renewed

- Credit facilities granted to any client who has declared bankruptcy or to any company that has been declared
underliquidation.

- Credit facilities that have been restructured three times within a year

- Current and demand accounts that have been overdrawn for a period of (90) days or more

- The value of guarantees paid on behalf of clients and not restricted to their accounts and have been due
for (90) days or more.

The minimum fee for credit facilities is calculated according to instructions No (47/2009) for this category of
facilities, according to the above rates and for the amount of facilities not covered by acceptable guarantees
during the first year, while the fee for the amount covered by 25% is completed over four years.

3- Profits and commissions on non-performing credit facilities granted to customers are suspended in
accordance with the instructions of the Central Bank of Jordan.

4- The assets that have been transferred to the company’s ownership appear in the unified financial statements
under the category of owned properties against outstanding debts, at either the value at which they were
transferred to the company or the fair value, whichever is lower They are re-evaluated individually on the
date of the unified financial statements, and any decrease in their value is recorded as a loss in the unified
income statement, while any increase is not recorded as revenue Any subsequent increase in value is
taken into account in the income statement up to the amount of the previously recorded decrease As at the
beginning of 2015, a gradual allowance has been calculated for properties owned against debts and that
have been held for more than 4 years, based on the circular of the Central Bank of Jordan 15/1/4076 dated
March 27, 2014 and number 10/1/2510 dated February 14, 2017.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
requires the use of important and specific accounting estimates, as well as requiring management to express
an opinion on the application of the company’s accounting policies The areas that involve a high degree
of diligence or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are fundamental to the consolidated
financial statements have been disclosed in clarification number (4).

2-2 Basis of consolidation of consolidated financial statements

Unified financial statements include the financial statements of the company and its controlled
entities (subsidiaries), and control is achieved when the company has:
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* The ability to control the invested entity

* Exposed to variable returns, or has the right to variable returns, resulting from its links with the invested
entity

* The ability to use its power to influence the returns of the invested entity

In case the voting rights of the company decrease below the majority of voting rights in any of the invested
facilities, it will have the ability to control when the voting rights are sufficient to grant the company the ability
to direct the activities of the related facility from one side The company takes into account all facts and
circumstances when assessing whether it has voting rights in the invested facility sufficient to grant it control
or not Among those facts and circumstances:

* Voting rights owned by the company in relation to the size and distribution of other voting rights

* Potential voting rights held by the company and any other holders of voting rights or other parties

* Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

* Any additional facts and circumstances indicating that the company is or is not currently responsible
for directing related activities and making required decisions, including how to vote in previous general
meetings

The subsidiary is consolidated when the company gains control over it and is deconsolidated when the
company loses control over it Specifically, the results of the acquired or disposed subsidiaries during the year
are included in the consolidated income statement from the date control is achieved until the date control is
lost over the subsidiary Profits, losses, and each item of comprehensive income are allocated to the owners
of the subsidiary and to the non-controlling interest Comprehensive income of subsidiaries is allocated to
the owners of the subsidiary and to the non-controlling interest even if this results in a deficit balance of the
non-controlling interest.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted, when necessary, to align their accounting policies with
those of the company Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are separately identified from the company’s
ownership rights in these subsidiaries The non-controlling interests currently held by non-controlling
shareholders are measured at either fair value or the proportionate share of the identifiable net assets at
acquisition The measurement basis is chosen on a transaction-by-transaction basis and other non-controlling
interests are initially measured at fair value after acquisition The carrying amount of non-controlling interests
is the amount of these interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent
changes in equity, even if this results in a deficit balance for the non-controlling interests.

The changes in the company’s shares in subsidiaries, which do not result in loss of control, are accounted for
as equity transactions The current value of the company’s shares and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative shares in the subsidiaries Any difference between the amount used to
adjust non-controlling interests and the fair value of the consideration paid or received directly in equity is
recognized and attributed to the owners of the company.

When a company loses control of a subsidiary facility, the profit or loss resulting from the exclusion is calculated
in the income statement by the difference between (1) the total fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any remaining interests and (2) the previous current value of the assets (including goodwill)
less any liabilities of the subsidiary facility and any interests held by non-controlling parties

All previously recognized amounts are accounted for in other comprehensive income in respect of that
subsidiary as if the company had directly disposed of assets or liabilities related to the subsidiary.

The fair value of the investment held in the former subsidiary at the date control is lost is considered fair value

when recognizing subsequent accounting under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments when the provisions of the
standard apply, or the cost of recognizing the investment in an associate or joint venture
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The Company owns the following subsidiary:

31 December 2024:

Jordanian Facilities for

Financial Leasing Co.
LLC

31 December 2023:

Jordanian Facilities for

Financial Leasing Co.
LLC

Company’s

Paid-in Company’s - Registration Date of
. . activity s
capital ownership centre acquisition
nature
2,000,000 100% Financial Jordan 5 May 2010
leasing
Paid-in Company’s C(;Tt?;?y S Registration Date of
capital ownership naturg centre acquisition
2,000,000 100% Finance Jordan 5 May 2010
lease

2-3 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

(a) New and amended standards and interpretations issued and adopted by the Group in the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2024:

The implementation of the above standards did not have a material impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

(b) The Group has not yet applied the following new standards, amendments and interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective:

An entity is impacted by the amendments when it has a transaction
or an operation in a foreign currency that is not exchangeable into

Lease Liability in a

In September 2022, the IASB finalised narrow-scope amendments
to the requirements for sale and leaseback transactions in IFRS
16 Leases which explain how an entity accounts for a sale and

e Annual
another currency at a measurement date for a specified purpose. A eriods
Amendments to IAS 21 —|currency is exchangeable when there is an ability to obtain the other perioc
- : . . . beginning
Lack of Exchangeability currency (with a normal administrative delay), and the transaction on or after 1
would take place through a market or exchange mechanism that
. L January 2025
creates enforceable rights and obligations.
On 30 May 2024, the IASB issued targeted amendments to IFRS 9
Amendments to the Financial Instruments and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Classification to respond to recent questions arising in practice, and to include new
and Measurement of requirements not only for financial institutions but also for corporate
] . o 1 January
Financial entities.
2026
Instruments —
Amendments to
IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
IFRS 18, ‘Presentation This is the new standard on presentation and disclosure in financial 1 January
and . . 2027 (early
. — . statements, which replaces IAS 1, with a focus on updates to the L.
Disclosure in Financial . adoption is
, statement of profit or loss. .
Statements permitted)
This new standard works alongside other IFRS Accounting
Standards. An eligible subsidiary applies the requirements in other|
IFRS Accounting Standards except for the disclosure requirements;
and it applies instead the reduced disclosure requirements in
. L IFRS 19. IFRS 19’s reduced disclosure requirements balance the
IFRS 19, ‘Subsidiaries | . .. A, .
. . information needs of the users of eligible subsidiaries’ financial
without Public statements with cost savings for preparers. IFRS 19 is a voluntar 1 January
/Accountability: 9 prep ) Y 2027

Disclosures’

standard for eligible subsidiaries.

A subsidiary is eligible if:

« it does not have public accountability; and

¢ it has an ultimate or intermediate parent that produces consolidated
financial statements available for public use that comply with IFRS

ccounting Standards

Sale and Leaseback — | leaseback after the date of the transaction. 1 January
Amendments to IFRS 2024
16:
On 25 May 2023, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 7 and
Supblier finance IFRS 7 to require specific disclosures about supplier finance
PP arrangements (SFAs). The amendments respond to the investors’
arrangements — . .
need for more information about SFAs to be able to assess how | 1 January
Amendments to IAS 7 ey
. these arrangements affect an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and 2024
and IFRS 7: L .
liquidity risk.
Amendments made to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
in 2020 and 2022 clarified that liabilities are classified as either
current or noncurrent, depending on the rights that exist at the end
Classification of of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the entity’s
Liabilities as Current | expectations or events after the reporting date (e.g. the receipt of a
or Non-current — waiver or a breach of covenant). 1 Januar
Amendments to Covenants of loan arrangements will not affect classification of 2024 y

IAS 1 Non-current

a liability as current or non-current at the reporting date if the

Liabilities with entity must only comply with the covenants after the reporting
Covenants date. However, if the entity must comply with a covenant either
on or before the reporting date, this needs to be considered in the
classification as current or non-current even if the covenant is only
tested for compliance after the reporting date
Y
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The management is still in the process of evaluating the impact of these new amendments on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, and it believes that there will be no significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements when they are implemented.

There are no other standards that are not yet effective and that would be expected to have a material impact
on the Group in the current year starting 1 January 2023 or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future

transactions.

2-4 Foreign currency translation

a) Operating currency and presentation currency of financial statements

The items appearing in the consolidated financial statements are evaluated using the main economic
environment currency in which the group conducts its activities (operating currency) The currency used to
present these consolidated financial statements is the Jordanian Dinar, which is considered the operating
currency and the currency used to present the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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b) Operations and balances

The transactions that are made in foreign currencies are converted to Jordanian dinars at the prevailing
conversion rate at the time of the transaction, and assets and financial liabilities in foreign currencies are
converted to Jordanian dinars at the prevailing rates at the end of the fiscal year, and the resulting conversion
gains and losses are included in the consolidated income statement.

2-5 Property and equipment

The properties and equipment are recorded at their historical cost minus accumulated depreciation The
historical cost includes expenses related to the acquisition of these properties and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the value of the assets or recognized as separate assets when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably The carrying amount of the replaced item is derecognized All repair and maintenance
expenses are recognized when incurred in the unified income statement

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over the useful life of the
properties and equipment The main useful lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Useful lives
(Years)
Furniture and fixtures 5
Office devices, tools, and computers 3-5
Decorations 5
Vehicles 7

The remaining value and productive life of assets are reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at the end of each
financial period When the amount that can be recovered from any of the assets and equipment is less than
its net book value, its value is reduced to the recoverable amount and the impairment loss is recorded in the
consolidated income statement.

The profits or losses resulting from the disposal of assets and equipment are determined based on the
difference between their book value and proceeds, and are recorded in the income statement.

2-6 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired through a merger are credited to fair value on the date they were acquired.
Intangible assets acquired through a method other than a merger are recorded at cost.

Assets that are intangible are classified based on whether they have a specific or indefinite lifespan Intangible
assets with a specific lifespan are extinguished during that lifespan and are recorded in the consolidated
income statement Intangible assets with an indefinite lifespan are reviewed for impairment at the financial
statement date and any impairment is recorded in the consolidated income statement

Intangible assets resulting from the Group’s business are not capitalized and are recorded in the consolidated
income statement in the same period.

Any indications of impairment of intangible assets are audited at the date of the consolidated financial
statements. The chronological life estimate of those assets is also reviewed and any adjustments are made
to subsequent periods.

Computer systems and programs: to be extinguished using the straight-line method within a period not
exceeding four years from the date of purchase.
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2-7 Assets foreclosed against defaulted loans

The properties that have been transferred to the group due to outstanding debts appear in the unified financial
statement under the Properties owned against debts item, at the value that was transferred to the group or
the fair value, whichever is lower and they are individually re-evaluated at fair value, and any decrease in
their value is recorded as a loss in the income statement, while any increase is not recorded as revenue. Any
subsequent increase is recorded in the income statement up to the limit that does not exceed the previously
recognized decrease.

2-8 Investment Properties

Real estate investment is a property that is acquired either for rental income or for an increase in its value
or both, but not for the purpose of selling it through normal group activities, and it is not used in production,
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. Real estate investments are initially displayed
at cost plus acquisition expenses. Their fair value is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements, which are revalued every two years individually by an independent real estate expert based on
market prices for those properties in an active real estate market. When the amount recoverable from any of
the real estate investments is less than its net book value, its value is reduced to the recoverable amount and
the impairment is recorded in the income statement, and no revaluation gains are recognized.

Gains and losses from disposals are determined by comparing receipts with book value and are recorded in
the income statement.

2-9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Reviewed consumable and extinguishable assets to determine impairment loss when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable Impairment loss is calculated as the
amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets, except for goodwill, that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2-10 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

This financial assets represent investments in property tools for the purpose of retaining them for the long
term.

These assets are proven at fair value, plus acquisition expenses at the time of purchase, and are subsequently
re-evaluated at fair value. The change in fair value appears in other comprehensive income and within unified
property rights, including the change in fair value resulting from differences in the conversion of non-cash
asset items in foreign currencies In the event of the sale of these assets or part of them, the profits or losses
resulting from this are taken in other comprehensive income and within unified property rights, and the
balance of the reserve for the evaluation of the financial assets sold is transferred directly to the circulating
profits and losses, not through the income statement.

These assets are not subject to impairment testing.

The distributed profits from these assets are recorded in the unified income statement.

2-11 Financial assets at amortized cost

These are the financial assets that the Group’s management aims to maintain in accordance with its business
model to collect contractual cash flows, which are represented by payments of principal and interest on the
balance of outstanding debt.
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The financial assets are proven at cost plus acquisition expenses, and the premium/discount is extinguished
using the effective interest method, whether on or for interest account, and any allowances resulting from
the decrease in their value that lead to the inability to recover the asset or part of it appear later in the unified
income statement and later appear at the extinguished cost after reducing it by impairment losses.

The impairment of financial assets at amortized cost represents the difference between the value recognized
in the records and the present value of the expected cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

2-12 Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement:

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and loans and advances are
recognized to customers if credited to the clients’ account.

Assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition or issuance of financial assets and liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value
of financial assets or liabilities, as appropriate, at initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or liabilities at fair value are recognized in the income statement directly.

« If the transaction price differs from the fair value at initial recognition, the Group treats this difference as
follows:

« If fair value is established at a specified price in an active market for identical assets or liabilities or based
on a valuation technique that uses only observable inputs, it recognizes the profit or loss difference upon
initial recognition (ie, the first day’s profit or loss);

« In all other cases, fair value is adjusted to reflect the transaction price (ie, the first day’s profit or loss will be
deferred by including it in the initial book value of the asset or liability)

« After initial recognition, deferred profit or loss will be taken to income statement on a rational basis, only to
the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would consider
when pricing the asset or liability or when derecognizing that instrument.

Initial recognition

All financial assets are recognized at the date of trading when buying or selling a financial asset under a
contract that requires the delivery of the financial asset within a specified time frame by the relevant market,
and is initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified at
fair value in the income statement Transaction costs directly related to the acquisition of financial assets
classified at fair value are recognized through profit or loss in the consolidated income statement.

Subsequent measurement

Requires measuring all recognized financial assets that fall within the scope of International Financial
Reporting Standard (9) subsequently at amortized cost or fair value based on the entity’s business model for
managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets specifically:

* Financing instruments held in the business model aimed at collecting contractual cash flows, which have
contractual cash flows that are only principal payments and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
and are subsequently measured at amortized cost;

* Tools of finance are held within a business model that aims to collect contractual cash flows and sell debt
instruments, which have contractual cash flows that are only payments of principal and interest on the

AN
56 @ Annual Report 2024

outstanding principal amount, and are subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

* All other financing instruments (such as debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale)
and investments in equity instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through the consolidated
income statement.

* However, the Group can select/identify the irrevocable after the initial recognition of the financial asset on
an asset-by-asset basis as follows:

* The Group may choose to irrevocably include subsequent changes in the fair value of non-controlling
interests in tradable or potentially replaceable proprietary instruments recognized by the buyerin abusiness
combination that applies International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 3, in other comprehensive
income.

The Group can irrevocably determine the financing tools that meet the cost extinguishing criteria or fair value
through other comprehensive income as measured by fair value through income statement if it cancels or
significantly reduces accounting mismatch (referred to as fair value option)

For an asset that is classified and measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, its contractual terms should result in cash flows which are only principal payments and interest on
the outstanding principal amount.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subject to a test of decline.

Expected credit losses

The Group recognizes provisions for expected credit losses on the following financial instruments that are
not measured at fair value through the consolidated income statement:

* Balances with banks.
* Financial assets at amortized cost.

No impairment loss is proven.

Except for purchased or emerging financial assets with low credit value (which are considered separately
below), expected credit losses must be measured by a loss provision in an amount equivalent to:

» Expected credit losses for a period of (12) months, which is the time horizon for expected credit losses
resulting from those hypothetical events on financial instruments that can be realized within (12) months
after the reporting date, referred to as Stage 1; or

» Expected credit losses for a period of (12) months, which is the time horizon for expected credit losses
resulting from all potential hypothetical events over the life of the financial instrument referred to as Stage
2 and Stage 3.

The expected lifetime credit loss must be recorded for the financial instrument if the credit risks on that
financial instrument have increased significantly since initial recognition For all other financial instruments,
the expected credit loss is measured at an amount equal to the expected credit loss for a period of (12)
months

Expected credit losses are a probable estimate of the current value of credit losses This value is measured as
the current value of the difference between the cash flows due to the group under the contract and the cash
flows received by the group and arising from the preference of several future economic scenarios, deducted

according to the effective interest rate of the asset
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2-13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks with original maturities
of three months or less.

2-14 Capital
The Group’s capital shares are included in the shareholders’ equity.

2-15 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trades payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less. If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2-16 Investment in Financial Leasing Contracts

Under the lease contract, the lessor transfers the usufruct of an asset for a limited period of time ending with
the transfer of ownership to the lessee.

All lease contracts are classified in the unified financial statements as finance leases when all risks and
benefits associated with them are transferred to the lessee Investments in finance lease contracts are shown
at the present value of lease payments after deducting expected credit losses for financial assets at amortized
cost (if any) All direct costs of finance lease contracts are included in the present value of investments in
finance lease contracts.

Financial lease payments are divided between the revenues of lease contracts and the principal amount paid
so that the revenue appears as a fixed return on investment in financial leasing contracts.

2-17 Revenue Generation and Recognition of Expenses

Revenues and expenses of interest are calculated for all financial instruments bearing interest by applying
the actual interest rate to the total book value of the financial instrument, except for financial assets that
have subsequently experienced a credit loss (or stage three), for which interest revenue is continued to be
recognized and suspended so that it is not recorded in the income statement and appears as a credit balance
against the total balance of the liability.

2-18 Borrowings

Loans are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortized cost Any differences between the amounts received (net of transaction costs) and the amounts
repaid are recognized in the income statement over the period of the loans using the effective interest method.

Loans are classified as current assets unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

2-19 Borrowing Costs

The costs of public, private, and directly related borrowing to the production of qualified assets are amortized
during the period necessary to prepare these assets for use or sale qualified assets are assets that require a
long period to prepare them to be ready for use for their intended purposes.

Other borrowing costs are charged to the period in which they are incurred.
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2-20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of a
past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.

The value recognised as a provision represents the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the estimated cash flows to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount represents the present value of those cash flows.

Where some or all of the economic benefits are required to settle a provision expected to be recovered
from other parties, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is almost certain that the receivable can be
recovered and the receivable can be measured reliably.

2-21 Employees’ benefits

For defined benefits plans, the Group mandatorily pays contributions to the pension insurance fund managed
by a government entity (the Social Security Corporation). The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions are paid. Such contributions are recognised as social security expense as they fall due.

2-22 Income tax
Tax expenses represent amounts of tax payable and deferred tax

Payable tax expenses are calculated based on taxable profits. Taxable profits are different from profits
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, as disclosed profits include revenue that is not subject to
tax, expenses that are not recognisable in the financial year but in subsequent years or accumulated losses
that are accepted in terms of tax or items that are not taxable or recognisable for tax purposes.

Taxes are calculated as per the tax rates established by the laws, regulations and instructions.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be paid or recovered as a result of temporary timing differences between
the value of assets or liabilities in the financial statements and the value based on which tax profit is calculated.
Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method in the statement financial position, and deferred tax is
accounted for in accordance with tax rates expected to be applied to settle the tax liability or realise deferred
tax assets.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities balance is reviewed at the consolidated financial statements date and
written down when it is not probable to utilise tax assets partially or fully or upon settlement of the tax
obligation.

2-23 Leases

Lease contracts are recognized as assets for the right to use and corresponding obligations on the date the
leased assets are available for use in the Group Each lease payment is allocated between the obligation and
finance cost The finance cost is charged to the comprehensive income statement over the lease period to
obtain a constant periodic interest rate on the remaining balance of the liability for each period Depreciation
is calculated on the right-of-use assets over the asset’s productive life or lease term, whichever is shorter,
using the straight-line method contracts may contain rental and non-rental components The corresponding
group in the contract is dedicated to rental and non-rental items based on their independent relative prices
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions
Lease agreements do not impose any commitments beyond the interests in the leased assets retained by the
lessor Leased assets cannot be used as collateral for borrowing purposes.
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(3) Financial Risk Management

3-1 Financial risk factors

The Group is exposed to various financial risks as a result of its activities, including the impact of market
volatility (currency conversion risk, interest rate risk for cash flows and fair value), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group’s overall risk management program focuses on minimizing the potential negative impact on
the Group’s financial results.

(a) Market risk
- Foreign exchange risk

The Group faces risks arising from its dealings in foreign currencies, the most important of which is the US
dollar. The conversion rate between USD and Jordanian Dinar remained unchanged during the year.

These risks arise from the change in the value of financial instruments as a result of currency exchange rate
fluctuations and the Group follows a deliberate policy in managing its foreign currency positions.

The following is a summary of the quantitative data related to the Group’s exposure to currency fluctuation
risks provided to the Group’s management based on the risk management policy:

JD?:;"';‘“"'"" Kuwaiti Dinar  Total
As at 31 December 2024
Cash on hand and at banks 2,649,387 - 2,649,387
comprehensve mcome oo e 27328 221328
Financial assets at amortised cost 137,363,339 - 137,363,339
Other debit balances 382,277 - 382,277
Right of use of leased assets 277,320 - 277,320
Assets foreclosed against defaulted loans 2,773,776 - 2,773,776
Property and equipment 173,589 - 173,589
Intangible assets 38,151 - 38,151
Deferred tax assets 4,136,371 - 4,136,371
Total assets 147,794,210 227,323 148,021,533
Bank overdrafts 6,991,751 - 6,991,751
Loans 77,105,919 - 77,105,919
Bonds 4,160,000 - 4,160,000
Lease liabilities 280,966 - 280,966
Other liabilities 1,606,266 - 1,606,266
Other provisions 319,486 - 319,486
Income tax provision 2,973,801 - 2,973,801
Total liabilities 93,438,189 - 93,438,189
Net 54,356,021 227,323 54,583,344

Jordanian

Dinar Kuwaiti Dinar  Total
As at 31 December 2023
Cash on hand and at banks 2,283,955 - 2,283,955
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 219,590 219,590
Financial assets at amortised cost 109,130,502 - 109,130,502
Other debit balances 366,812 - 366,812
Right of use of leased assets 362,072 362,072
Investment properties 218,966 - 218,966
Assets foreclosed against defaulted loans 2,720,158 - 2,720,158
Property and equipment 79,108 - 79,108
Intangible assets 51,844 - 51,844
Deferred tax assets 3,571,511 - 3,571,511
Total assets 118,784,928 219,590 119,004,518
Bank overdrafts 9,210,050 - 9,210,050
Loans 58,585,957 - 58,585,957
Lease liabilities 364,628 - 364,628
Other liabilities 1,083,509 - 1,083,509
Other provisions 360,514 - 360,514
Income tax provision 2,400,300 - 2,400,300
Total liabilities 72,004,958 - 72,004,958
Net 46,779,970 219,590 46,999,560

- Interest rate risk for cash flows and fair value.

The Group’s interest rate risks arise from bank loans. Loans granted to the Group at a variable interest rate
expose the Group to interest rate risk for cash flows, while fixed interest loans expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk.

As at 31 December 2024, loans granted to the Group at a variable interest rate consist of bank loans and
credit banks granted in Jordanian Dinars and US Dollars (Notes 13 and 14).

If the interest rate on loans and facilities changes by 1% assuming other variables are constant, the impact
on the statement of comprehensive income will be an increase in interest expense by JD 882,577 as at 31
December 2024 (2023: JD 677,960).

The effect of a lower interest rate of the same value will have the same effect as above with the reversal of
the signal.
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from Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan  More than Rating 2024 2023

month (3) months  (6) months ayear (3) years JD JD
Less than a Up to (3) Up to (6) Upto3 Upto5 Useless
For the year 2024 month months months To a year years years items Total
Assets JD JD JD JD JD JD JD JD Invest Bank NR 21,723 2,057,276
Jordan Ahli Bank B+ 9,939 37,312
Cashonhandand - - - 2,500,000 - - 149,387 2,649,387 Egyptian Land Bank NR 1,337 23,714
at banks Arab Bank BB 5,572 10,320
Financial assets - - - - - - 227,323 227,323 H i Bank BA3 9173 385
at fair value 4,887,221 4920802 6,256,203 11,253,087 80,255,709 29,790,317 - 137,363,339 ousing an. ’
thf°ughh°the_" Jordan Kuwait Bank B+ 14,649 4,815
comprehensive
income BLOM Bank NR 2,502,133 :
Financial assets at - 50,307 - 95,314 236,656 - - 382,277
amortised cost 2,564,526 2,133,822
Other debit - - - - - - 277,320 277,320 S
balances (c) Liquidity risk
Right of use of - - - - - - 2,773,776 2,773,776
leased assets Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that a group is exposed to difficulties in meeting its obligations.
Assets foreclosed - - - - - - 173,589 173,589
against defaulted The Group manages liquidity risk by providing the necessary cash through borrowing and credit facilities.
loans The Group also monitors cash flows for outstanding instalments from customers.
Property and - - - - - - 38,151 38,151
eq”'p"?e"t The table below shows the Group’s financial liabilities (not discounted) to certain categories as at the date of
Intangible assets the statement of financial position based on the maturity date for the remaining periods.
Deferred tax - - - - - - 4,136,371 4,136,371
assets Less than one More than
Total assets 4,887,221 4,971,109 6,256,203 13,848,401 80,492,365 29,790,317 7,775,917 148,021,533 year One one year Total
N JD JD JD
Liabilities As at 31 D ber 2024
Bank overdrafts - - 538,388 6,453,363 - - - 6,991,751 sa ecember
Loans - 8,273,447 10,826,402 19,557,826 36,933,344 1514900 - 77,105,919 Bank overdrafts 6,991,751 - 6,991,751
Bonds . 4160000 - . ) . . 4,160,000 Loans 38,657,674 38,448,245 77,105,919
Lease liabilities - 37,335 27,987 36,987 95,806 82,851 - 280,966 Bonds 4,160,000 - 4,160,000
Other liabilities - 1,137,612 273,904 176,509 18,241 - - 1,606,266 Lease liabilities 102,309 178,657 280,966
Other provision - - - 319,486 - - - 319,486 Other liabilities 1,588,025 18,241 1,606,266
Income tax 966,486 - 2,007,315 - - - - 2,973,801 Other provisions 31 9,486 - 31 9,486
provision
Total liabilities 966,486 13,608,394 13,673,996 26,544,171 37,047,391 1,597,751 - 93,438,189 Total 51.819.245 38.645.143 90.464.388
Interest repricing 3,920,735 (8,637,285) (7,417,793) (12,695,770) 43,444974 28,192,566 7,775,917 54,583,344 ’ ’ ? 4 4 ’
gap
For the year 2023
Total Assets 5,038,697 4,181,621 5,007,813 7,194,755 49,220,326 38,159,942 8,121,424 116,924,578
Total Liabilities 618,800 5,637,291 12,786,556 21,480,495 31,162,217 319,599 - 72,004,958
Interest repricing 4,419,897
gap (1,455,670) (7,778,743)  (14,285,740) 18,058,109 37,840,343 8,121,424 44,919,620
As at 31 December 2023
(b) Credit risk Bank overdrafts 9,210,050 - 9,210,050
Loans 27,390,093 31,195,864 58,585,957
The Group does not have significant credit risk concentrations. Financial assets subject to credit risk are L
limited to balances with banks, trade receivables, some other receivables and amounts due from related Lease liabilities 96,977 267,651 364,628
parties. The Group only deals with financial institutions with high credit solvency. The Group also has a clear Other liabilities 1,065,208 18,301 1,083,509
credit policy for all customers. Other provisions 360,514 - 360,514
. ) ) ) L Total 38,122,842 31,481,816 69,604,658
The following table shows the balances of banks and their credit rating as at 31 December distributed as
follows:
VY Y
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3-2 Capital Risk Management

The Group’s objective in capital management is to maintain the Group’s viability which generates a return for
shareholders and maintains an optimal capital structure, thereby reducing capital costs. The Group monitors
capital by monitoring the debt ratio. This ratio is calculated by dividing the net debts by the total capital, and
the net debts are calculated by counting the total loans, which include loans, credit banks, obligations of
operating leases and loan bonds, from which cash and the like are reduced, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Total capital is calculated by adding shareholders’ equity with net debt, as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The gearing ratio was as follows:

2024 2023
JD JD
Total loans 88,538,636 68,160,635
Cash on hand and at banks (2,649,387) (2,283,955)
Net debt 85,889,249 65,876,680
Net equity 54,583,344 46,999,560
Total capital 140,472,593 112,876,240
Gearing ratio 61% 58%
3-3 Fair Value

Fair Value Levels

The following table represents the financial instruments recorded at fair value based on the valuation method,
where the different levels are defined as follows:

Level 1: Declared (unadjusted) prices of assets or liabilities in active markets.

Level 2: Prices published in active markets for similar financial assets and liabilities, or other price valuation
methods for which material data are based on market information.

Level 3: Pricing methods in which not all material data is based on observable market information, and the
Group has used book value, which is the best tool available to measure the fair value of those investments.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
JD JD JD JD
31 December 2024
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income - - 227,323 227,323
31 December 2023
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income - - 219,590 219,590

(a) Financial assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

31 December 2024
Assets

Cash on hand and at
banks

Financial assets at
amortised cost

Other debit balances

Right of use of leased
assets

Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Liabilities

Bank overdrafts
Loans

Bonds

Lease liabilities
Other liabilities
Other provisions
Income tax provision

31 December 2023
Assets

Cash on hand and at
banks

Financial assets at
amortised cost

Other debit balances

Right of use of leased
assets

Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Liabilities

Bank overdrafts

Loans

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

Other provisions
Income tax provision

Fair Value
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
JD JD JD JD
2,649,387 2,649,387 - -
137,363,339 - 137,363,339 -
382,277 - 382,277 -
277,320 - 277,320 -
173,589 - 173,589 -
38,151 - 38,151 -
4,136,371 - 4,136,371 -
6,991,751 - 6,991,751 -
77,105,919 - 77,105,919 -
4,160,000 - 4,160,000 -
280,966 - 280,966 -
1,606,266 - 1,606,266 -
319,486 - 319,486 -
2,973,801 - 2,973,801 -
Book Value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
JD JD JD JD
2,283,955 2,283,955 - -
109,130,502 - 109,130,502 -
366,812 - 366,812 -
362,072 - 362,072 -
79,108 - 79,108 -
51,844 - 51,844 -
3,571,511 - 3,571,511 -
9,210,050 - 9,210,050 -
58,585,957 - 58,585,957 -
364,628 - 364,628 -
1,083,509 - 1,083,509 -
360,514 - 360,514 -
2,400,300 - 2,400,300 -

Management believes that the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities is close to their fair value.

Annual Report 2024 @ é



There are no transfers between level 1 and level 3 during the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023.

(b) Non-financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements:

Investment properties

Assets foreclosed against defaulted
loans

Investment properties
Assets foreclosed against defaulted

31 December 2024

Book value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
JD JD JD JD
2,773,776 - 2,773,776 -

31 December 2023

Book value Fair Value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
JD JD JD JD
218,966 - 218,966 -
2,720,158 - 2,720,158 -

loans

3-4 Financial instruments by category

Assets as per the consolidated statement of financial

position
Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Cash on hand and at banks

Financial assets at amortised cost

Other debit balances (excluding prepaid expenses)

Liabilities as per the consolidated statement of financial

position

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
overdrafts Bank

Loans

Bonds

Lease liabilities

Other liabilities

2024 2023
JD JD

227,323 219,590
2,649,387 2,283,955
137,363,339 109,130,502
277,260 366,812
140,289,986 111,781,269
6,991,751 9,210,050
77,105,919 58,585,957
4,160,000 -
280,966 364,628
1,606,266 1,083,509
90,144,902 69,244,144

(4) Critical Accounting Estimates And Judgments

The Group conducts an ongoing assessment of accounting estimates and judgments based on past
experience and other factors, including anticipated events that are believed to be reasonable based on
current circumstances.

The group makes estimates and assumptions regarding the future. The resulting accounting estimates are by
their nature rarely equal to the relevant actual results. Estimates and assumptions that have significant risks
and cause a material adjustment in the book values of assets and liabilities during the next fiscal year are as
follows:

Impairment of seized assets

Impairment of seized assets is recognised based on most recent property valuation approved by accredited
valuators for the purposes of calculating the impairment. The impairment provisions for seized assets is
reviewed periodically.

Expected credit loss provisions

The Group’s management is required to use significant judgments and estimates to estimate future cash
flows amounts and timings and estimate the risks of a significant increase in credit risk for financial assets
after initial recognition and future measurement information for expected credit losses.

Leases

Determining of lease term: In determining the lease term, the management considers all facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. The
extension options (or periods after the termination options) are included only in the term of the lease if the
lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). The evaluation is reviewed in the event of a
significant event or significant change in the circumstances that affect this evaluation and that are under the
control of the lessee. Extension and termination of leases options: these are included in a number of leases.
These conditions are used to increase operational flexibility in terms of contract management. Most of the
extension and termination options held are renewable by both the Group and the lessor.

Discounting of lease payments: Lease payments are discounted using the Group’ incremental borrowing rate
(“IBR”). Management applied judgements and estimates to determine the incremental borrowing rate at the
start of the lease.

Assets and liabilities that are stated at cost

Management reviews, on a regular basis, the assets and liabilities that are stated at cost to estimate
impairments, if any. Impairment losses are recognised in the consolidated condensed interim statement of
other comprehensive income for the period.

Income tax

The financial year is charged with its own income tax expense in accordance with the laws and regulations,
and accounting standards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities and required tax provision are accounted for.

Provision for legal cases

A provision is made for any potential legal obligations based on the legal study prepared by the Group’s legal
advisor that identifies the potential risks that may occur in the future. Such study is reviewed periodically.

Determine the number and relative weight of the future outlook scenarios for each type of product/market and
identify future information relevant to each scenario
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When measuring expected credit loss, the Company uses reasonable and supportable future information
based on assumptions about the future movement of various economic drivers and how these drivers affect
each other.

Probability of Default

The probability of default is a key input in measuring expected credit loss. The probability of default is an
estimate of the likelihood of default over a specific period of time, which includes calculations of historical
data, assumptions and expectations regarding future conditions.

Loss Given Default

The loss given default is an estimate of the loss resulting from a default. It is based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that the financier expects to collect, taking into account cash flows
from additional collateral and integrated credit adjustments.

Fair value measurement and valuation procedures

When estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Company uses available
observable market data. In the absence of Level (1) inputs, the Company performs valuations using
appropriate valuation models to determine the fair value of financial instruments.

(5) Cash On Hand And At Banks

2024 2023
JD JD
Cash on hand 84,861 150,133
Current accounts at banks 64,526 133,822
Deposits at banks 2,500,000 2,000,000
2,649,387 2,283,955

* This item represents amounts deposited for time in Jordanian dinars with local banks at an annual interest
rate of 6% and is due monthly. Interest income amounted to 130,644 dinars during the year 2024 (2023:
84,247 dinars), and the deposit amount is considered restricted for withdrawal as a guarantee for the loan
granted by the BLOM Bank.

The Group has calculated the expected credit loss provision on bank balances and has not recorded it as the
expected credit loss is immaterial.

(6) Financial Assets At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

2024 2023
JD JD
Outside the Kingdom
Shares of unlisted companies 227,323 219,590

The investment represents shares in Al-Soor Holding international Company (Kuwait). The total number of
unquoted shares owned is 500,000 shares representing 0.1% of the Company’s paid in capital. The fair value
has been calculated based on the percentage of the Company’s contribution to the net assets according
to the latest audited financial statements of the investee. Management believes that this value is the best
measure according to available valuation methods.
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(7) Financial Assets At Amortized Cost

Installment receivables (1) — net

Finance lease receivables (2) -

net

These assets were distributed according to their maturity date as follows:

Due within less than one year

Due within more than one year and less than five years
Due within more than five years

Provision of ECL in facilities contracts

Revenue from unearned facilities contracts

Interest in suspense within instalments payable
Net investment in instalment receivables

2024 2023
JD JD
136,834,247 108,438,694
529,092 691,808
137,363,339 109,130,502
2024 2023
JD JD
56,288,117 37,278,232
120,171,335 103,598,165
13,697,645 8,777,215
190,157,097 149,653,612
(9,631,624) (8,844,688)
(38,469,620)  (28,151,241)
(4,692,514) (3,527,181)
137,363,339 109,130,502

Loans classified as stage 3 as at 31 December 2024 amounted to JD 19,401,599 (2023: JD 14,353,159).

Disclosure of movement on total facilities aggregate (installment receivables, finance lease receivables, and

credit cards) minus revenues from unearned facilities contracts:

Item

Beginning Balance
New Facilities during the year

Paid Facilities

Transfer to stage one
Transfer to stage two
Transfer to stage three

Changes from adjustments

Written off balances
Gross Balance as at Year End

As at 31
As at 31 December 2024 December
2023
Stage One Stage Two Stage Two
Individual Individual Individual Total Total
Level Level Level
JD JD JD JD JD
91,870,552 15,278,662 14,353,157 121,502,371 97,600,867
48,038,270 3,977,786 1,758,917 53,774,973 48,079,667
(7,507,112) (1,811,175) (1,557,132) (10,875,419) (12,289,884)
6,066,755 (4,795,799) (1,270,956) - -
(10,989,032) 12,079,402 (1,090,370) - -
(3,125,562) (4,042,254) 7,167,816 - -
(12,140,604) (614,011) 245,028 (12,509,587) (11,700,043)
- - (204,861) (204,861) (188,236)
112,213,267 20,072,611 19,401,599 151,687,477 121,502,371
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Disclosure of movement in a collective expected credit loss allowance (installment receivables and finance

2024 2023
lease contracts receivables):
) JD JD
As at 31
As at 31 December 2024 December Real-estates 9,964,914 9,631,441
2023 Companies 18,999,734 16,967,009
StageOne _Stage Two _Stage Two Loans and bills 160,116,665 121,777,390
'”i‘;\'/:‘;a' '”i‘;\'/:‘;a' '"i‘;’\',‘;‘:a' Total Total Total Instalment Receivables 189,081,313 148,375,840
JD JD JD JD JD o ) o
ltem Provision of ECL in facilities contracts (9,367,813) (8,588,322)
B_eginning Balance 456.483 501 688 7 886.517 8.844 688 8.085.957 Revenue from unearned facilities contracts (38,346,469) (27,974,057)
Impairment loss on new balances 1 312.803 813610 583217 2700630 2761574 Interest in suspense within instalments payable (4,532,784) (3,374,767)
during the year/ additions I ’ ’ T e Net Investment in Instalment Receivables 136,834,247 108,438,694
Recovered from impairment loss on
collected balances (42,278) (206,706) (1,486,566) (1,735,550) (1,706,139) - Instalment receivables are distributed net after subtracting revenues from unearned facilities contracts
Transfer to stage one 534,004 (182,781) (351,223) . . in addition to loans granted to clients - credit cards in an aggregate manner according to credit stages in
Transfer to stage two (61,475) 560.264 (498,789) ) ) accordance with the requirements of IFRS (9) amended according to the instructions of Central Bank of
9 ’ ’ ’ Jordan as follows:
Transfer to stage three (13,162) (128,365) 141,527 - - 31 December 2024
Total impact on impairment loss due
to classification change between  (1,628,006)  (612,308) 2,240,314 - Stage One _ Stage Two _ Stage Three
stages Individual Individual Individual
Level Level Level Total
Changes from adjustments (109,570) 81,641 (97,184) (125,113)  (245,744) eve eve eve
Written off balances - - (62,030)  (62,030)  (50,960) JD JD JD JD
Gross Balance as at Year End 448,799 827,043 8,355,783 9,631,625 8,844,688
Beginning Balance 91,305,002 15,230,626 13,866,155 120,401,783
Installment receivables New Facilities during the year 48,038,270 3,977,786 1,396,906 53,412,962
_ _ _ _ o _ Paid Facilities (7,095,350) (1,793,567) (1,538,458) (10,427,375)
Installtr_'nent rezell\;llabl(;s r:ey::cresent the (;nstalllmcin:s mcm:lr;red b_y t:me]lGrOt:pfs cllle(;\tst;rom .cornn]er;ute: fl?andcw!g Transfer to stage one 6,053,241 (4,782,285) (1,270,956) }
operg ions and Murabaha for cars and real estate, as . ese !ns allments include : e principal o .e unds in Transfer to stage two (10,079,036) 12,069,406 (1,090,370) )
addition to the revenue amounts calculated on these financing. The balances of installment receivables are
as follows: Transfer to stage three (3,125,562) (4,031,410) 7,156,972 -
Changes from adjustments (12,100,633)  (607,941) 238,958 (12,469,616)
2024 2023 Written off balances - - (182,910) (182,910)
JD JD Gross Balance as at Year End 112,095,932 20,062,615 18,576,297 150,734,844
31 December 2023
Due within less than one year 55,644,760 36,513,614 Stage One Stage Two Stage Three
Due within more than one year and less than five years 119,768,636 103,120,492 Individual Individual Individual Total
Due within more than five years 13,667,917 8,741,734 Level Level Level
189,081,313 148,375,840 JD JD JD JD
Provision of ECL in facilities contracts (9,367,813) (8,588,322) Eegur::nm-?t?alznc? th :?222:(7)3 :2;(2)22; 106(1)374;25 2322222
ew Facilities during the year 453, ,990, ,009, ,093,
Revenue from unearned facilities contracts* (38,346,469) (27,974,057) . o 9 y
Int Ny ithin instal ¢ bl 4.532 784 3.374.767 Paid Facilities (8,960,983) (1,618,232) (1,265,822) (11,845,037)
,\T ‘:rles n SUSP_enlse W'I n '”; a m_e"bsl' payable 1(3(’3 o 24; (10’8 i3 69)4 Transfer to stage one 2,193,120 (1,580,625)  (612,495) .
et Investment in Instalment Receivables 094, 296, Transfer to stage two (7,825,865) 8,424,754  (598,889) -
* This item includes deferred income for each of the commercial financing operations, Murabaha for purchase Transfer to stage .three (3,096,933) (1,666,110) 4,763,043 )
order, international Murabaha and deferred sale murabaha as on 31 December 2024 and 2023. Changes from adjustments (10,853,725)  (591,713) - (11,445,438)
Written off balances - - (186,840) (186,840)
The sectorial distribution of instalment receivables is as follows: Gross Balance as at Year End 91,305,002 15,230,626 13,866,155 120,401,783
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Disclosure of movement in the allowance for expected credit losses:

Beginning Balance

Impairment loss on new balances during the
year / additions

Recovered from impairment loss on
outstanding balances

Transfer to stage one
Transfer to stage two
Transfer to stage three

Total impact on impairment loss due to
classification change between stages

Changes from adjustments
Written off balances
Gross Balance as at Year End

Beginning Balance

Impairment loss on new balances during the
year / additions

Recovered from impairment loss on
outstanding balances

Transfer to stage one
Transfer to stage two
Transfer to stage three

Total impact on impairment loss due to
classification change between stages

Changes from adjustments
Written off balances
Gross Balance as at Year End

31 December 2024

Scheduled debts:

They are those debts that were previously classified as non-performing credit facilities and were excluded
from the framework of non-performing credit facilities according to a basic schedule and were classified as
debts under supervision or transferred to working, amounted to JD 6,854,273 as at 31 December 2024 (2023:

Stage One Stage Two Stage Three
Individual Individual Individual Total
Level Level Level
JD JD JD JD
455,918 497,730 7,634,674 8,588,322
1,312,803 809,976 571,262 2,694,041
(42,015) (203,549) (1,483,465) (1,729,029)
532,196 (180,973) (351,223) -
(61,404) 560,193 (498,789) -
(13,162) (128,084) 141,246 -
(1,626,274) (612,109) 2,238,383 -
(109,320) 78,119 (93,662) (124,863)
- - (60,658) (60,658)
448,742 821,303 8,097,768 9,367,813
31 December 2023
Stage One Stage Two Stage Three
Individual Individual Individual Total
Level Level Level
JD JD JD JD

553,550 368,550 6,897,212 7,819,312
1,000,816 486,640 1,263,495 2,750,951
(56,161) (112,019) (1,516,846) (1,685,026)
395,039 (74,911) (320,128) -
(58,920) 292,679 (233,759) -
(21,205) (93,274) 114,479 -
(1,204,590) (276,335) 1,480,925 -
(152,611) (93,600) - (246,211)
- - (50,704) (50,704)
455,918 497,730 7,634,674 8,588,322

JD 2,738,115).

Restructured debt:

Restructuring means re-arranging the status of credit facilities in terms of modifying installments, or
extending the life of credit facilities, or postponing some installments or extending the grace period, and they
were classified as debts under supervision, amounted to JD 21,648,642 as at 31 December 2024 (2023: JD

4,717,642).

The Installments receivable balances include instaliments cases filed by the company against customers to

collect the unpaid amounts is as follow:

31 December 2024

31 December 2023

Due and Due and
past due past due
Total debt instalment Total debt instalment
balance receivables balance receivables
Customers balances — Legal cases 34,223,138 11,345,524 24,480,523 8,046,949
Interest in suspense within due instalment
The following is the movement in interest in suspense within due instalments:
31 December 2024 Real Estates = Companies Loa;iﬁsand Total
JD JD JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 115,370 1,922,339 1,337,058 3,374,767
Add: interest suspended during the year 44 112 705,968 730,811 1,480,891
Reduces: Transferred benefits to revenue (15,106) (40,349) (145,167) (200,622)
Decreases: Outstanding revenue that has
been written off * (11,182) (35,804) (75,266) (122,252)
Total balance as at the end of the year 133,194 2,552,154 1,847,436 4,532,784
31 December 2023 Real Estates = Companies LoaBniﬁ:nd Total
JD JD JD JD
Balance at the beginning of the year 83,652 1,441,956 983,208 2,508,816
Add: interest suspended during the year 35,566 618,023 570,623 1,224,212
Reduces: Transferred benefits to revenue (3,848) (72,234) (146,043) (222,125)
Decreas.es: Outs;:andmg revenue that has ) (65,406) (70,730) (136,136)
been written off
Total balance as at the end of the year 115,370 1,922,339 1,337,058 3,374,767
Y
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* Based on the decision of the Company’s board of directors, an amount of JD 60,658 was written off from
the provision of expected credit losses during the period ending 31 December 2024 (2023: JD 50,704) and
an amount of JD 122,252 was written off during the period ending on 31 December 2024 (2023: JD 136,136)

from the interest in suspense.

Finance lease contract receivables

The following table shows the maturity periods of finance lease contracts receivables before deducting the

deferred revenue:

Maturity within less than a year
Maturity within more than a year and less than five years
Maturity within more than five years

Expected credit loss provision of finance lease contracts
Deferred revenue

Interest in suspense within due instalments

Net Investment in Finance Lease Contracts

2024 2023
JD JD
643,357 764,618
402,699 477,673
29,728 35,481
1,075,784 1,277,772
(263,811) (256,366)
(123,151) (177,184)
(159,730) (152,414)
529,092 691,808

The Company grants real estate finance to its customers through closed end leasing contract, with average
terms of 5 years, the sectorial distribution of finance lease contracts receivables is as follows:

Real-estates

Companies

Borrowings

Total Investment in Finance Lease contracts

Provision of ECL of finance leases contracts
Deferred revenue

Interest in suspense within due instalments
Net Investment in Finance Lease contracts

2024 2023
JD JD
822,625 996,980
60,029 53,908
193,130 226,884
1,075,784 1,277,772
(263,811) (256,366)
(123,151) (177,184)
(159,730) (152,414)
529,092 691,808

The finance lease contract receivables are distributed in net after subtracting the revenue in suspense and
the deferred revenue in a grouped manner according to the credit stages according to the requirements of
IFRS 9 amended according to the instructions of Central Bank of Jordan as follows:

Beginning Balance

New Facilities During the year
Paid Facilities

Transfer to stage one
Transfer to stage two
Transfer to stage three
Changes from adjustments
Written off balances

Gross Balance as at Year End

Beginning Balance

New Facilities During the year
Paid Facilities

Transfer to stage one
Transfer to stage two
Transfer to stage three
Changes from adjustments
Written off balances

Gross Balance as at Year End

31 December 2024

S(t;%e S_;\?v%e Stage Three
Individual Individual Individual
Level Level Level Total
JD JD JD JD
565,550 48,036 487,002 1,100,588
- - 362,011 362,011
(399,075) (17,608) (18,674) (435,357)
13,514 (13,514) - -
(9,996) 9,996 - -
- (16,914) 16,914 -
(52,658) - - (52,658)
- - (21,951) (21,951)
117,335 9,996 825,302 952,633
31 December 2023
S(t;%e S.;‘?v%e Stage Three
Individual Individual Individual Total
Level Level Level
JD JD JD JD
806,384 135,775 433,067 1,375,226
391,962 13,974 20,274 426,210
(342,153) (56,622) (46,072) (444,847)
37,332 (37,332) - -
(10,330) 10,330 - -
(74,221) (6,732) 80,953 -
(243,424) (11,357) 176 (254,605)
- - (1,396) (1,396)
565,550 48,036 487,002 1,100,588

N
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- Disclosure of movement in the allowance for expected credit losses:

31 December 2024

Stage One Stage Two  Stage Three
Individual Individual Individual
Total
Level Level Level
JD JD JD JD
Beginning Balance 565 3,958 251,843 256,366
Impairment loss on new balances during the 3634 11.954 15.588
year ’ ’ ’
Recovered from impairment loss on paid (91) (3,158) (3,101) (6,350)
balances ’ ’ ’
Transfer to stage one 1,808 (1,808) - -
Transfer to stage two (71) 71 - -
Transfer to stage three - (454) 454 -
Total impact on impairment loss due to (1,732) (1,565) 3097 )
classification change between stages ’ ’ ’
Changes from adjustments (423) 5,062 (5,060) (421)
Written off balance - - (1,372) (1,372)
Gross Balance as at Year End 56 5,740 258,015 263,811
31 December 2023
Stage One Stage Two  Stage Three
Individual Individual Individual
Total
Level Level Level
JD JD JD JD
Beginning Balance 2,955 3,636 260,054 266,645
Impairment loss on new balances during the 1725 2198 6.702 10625
year Lk H H H
Recovered from impairment loss on paid (1,872) (2,707) (16,523) (21,102)
balances ’ ’ ’ ’
Transfer to stage one 230 (230) - -
Transfer to stage two (154) 154 - -
Transfer to stage three (202) (908) 1,110 -
Total impact on impairment loss due to (1,627) 366 1261 )
classification change between stages ’ ’
Changes from adjustments (490) 1,449 (505) 454
Written off balance - - (256) (256)
Gross Balance as at Year End 565 3,958 251,843 256,366

Scheduled debts:

They are those debts that were previously classified as non-performing credit facilities and were excluded
from the framework of non-performing credit facilities according to a basic schedule and were classified as
debts under supervision or transferred to working, and amounted to JD 347,845 as at 31 December 2024
(2023: JD 18,973).

Restructured debt:
Restructuring means re-arranging the status of credit facilities in terms of modifying instalments, extending
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the life of credit facilities, postponing some instalments or extending the grace period, and they were classified
as debts under supervision, amounted to JD 407,874 as at 31 December 2024 (JD 67,088 as at 31 December
2023).

Balances of finance lease contracts include accounts for which the Company has filed legal cases against
customers in order to collect unpaid and due amounts are as follows:

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

Due and Due and
Total debt past due Total debt past due
balance instalment balance instalment
receivables receivables
JD JD JD JD
Customers balances — 838,816 418,019 541,736 385,199

Legal cases
Interest in suspense within due instalments

The following is the movement in interest in suspense within due instalments:

Real Estate Loans Total
JD JD JD
31 December 2024
Balance at the beginning of the year 119,331 33,083 152,414
Added: interest outstanding during the year 26,969 4,186 31,155
Reduces: Transferred benefits to revenue (807) (2,453) (3,260)
E::;e;f:tznool#standmg revenue that has (20,184) (395) (20,579)
Total balance as at the end of the year 125,309 34,421 159,730
Real Estate Loans Total
JD JD JD
31 December 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 104,754 28,983 133,737
Added: interest outstanding during the year 17,684 15,251 32,935
Reduces: Transferred benefits to revenue (3,107) (10,011) (13,118)
\IAD/?i(t:tf:Z?fS: Outstanding revenue that has been (1,140) (1,140)
Total balance as at the end of the year 119,331 33,083 152,414

Based on the decision of the Company’s board of directors, an amount of JD 1,372 was written off from the
expected credit loss provision during the year ending 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: JD 256) and an
amount of JD 20,579 was written off from the interest in suspense during the year ended 31 December 2024
(31 December 2023: JD 1,140).
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Right of use leased assets:

2024 2023
JD JD
Cost
Balance as at 1 January 754,302 572,836
Additions 13,382 181,466
Balance as at December 31 767,684 754,302
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 392,230 295,425
Depreciation for the year 98,134 96,805
Balance as at December 31 490,364 392,230
Net Book Value as at December 31 277,320 362,072
Lease liabilities:
2024 Beginning Interest Additions Lease Ending Current Non-
Balance expense payments Balance Current
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD
Lease liabilities 364,628 22,463 13,382 (119,507) 280,966 102,309 178,657
2023 Beginning Interest Additions Lease Ending Current Non-
Balance expense payments  Balance Current
JD JD JD JD JD JD JD
Lease liabilities 274,155 28,516 181,466 (119,509) 364,628 96,977 267,651
(9) Investment Properties
2024 2023
JD JD
Cost
Balance as at 1 January 391,010 585,000
Disposals (391,010) (193,990)
Balance as at 31 December - 391,010
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 172,044 234,000
Depreciation expense 3,171 22,753
Related to Disposals (175,215) (84,709)
Balance as at 31 December - 172,044
Net book value as at 31 December - 218,966

Investment properties are presented at cost less depreciation and impairment (if any). This item represents
the allocation of 24 residential units of Al Majd residential project for the benefit of the Group, based on
the agreement signed with the developer Tameer International Real Estate Company, noting that the Group
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acquired the apartments and issued ownership deeds in its name. The fair value of the investment properties
is amounted to JD 375,300 under the latest real estate valuation available to the Group dated 14 June 2022.
Sixteen apartments were sold in 2024 and a profit of JD 90,705 was made and Eight apartments were sold in

2023 and a profit of JD 31,719 was made.

(10) Assets Foreclosed Against Defaulted Loans

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions

Disposals

Allowance for impairment of asset against receivables
Balance at the year end

2024 2023
JD JD
2,720,158 2,692,228
463,353 357,069
(406,738) (329,139)
(2,997) -
2,773,776 2,720,158

The group evaluated these properties in 2024 by independent real estate experts. There is a decline in the
value of the acquired properties amounting to (2,997) dinars as of December 31, 2024.

(11) Property And Equipment

. Office
Furniture Devices . _
and ’ Decorations Vehicles Total
Fixtures Tools, and
Computer

2024 JD JD JD JD JD
Cost
Balance as at 1 January 72,608 386,319 208,102 84,500 751,529
Additions 11,238 65,937 28,408 34,908 140,491
Disposals (8,533) (42,118) (32,329) (25,500) (108,480)
Balance as at 31 December 75,313 410,138 204,181 93,908 783,540
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 59,126 335,987 192,812 84,496 672,421
Depreciation expense 4,311 29,051 8,828 3,494 45,684
Disposals (8,475) (41,853) (32,326) (25,500) (108,154)
Balance as at 31 December 54,962 323,185 169,314 62,490 609,951
Net book value as at 31 December 2024 20,351 86,953 34,867 31,418 173,589
2023
Cost
Balance as at 1 January 69,489 364,693 206,822 84,500 725,504
Additions 5,789 35,848 1,280 - 42,917
Disposals (2,670) (14,222) - - (16,892)
Balance as at 31 December 72,608 386,319 208,102 84,500 751,529
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 January 58,282 313,451 182,626 84,496 638,855
Depreciation expense 3,485 36,726 10,186 - 50,397
Disposals (2,641) (14,190) - - (16,831)
Balance as at 31 December 59,126 335,987 192,812 84,496 672,421
Net book value as at 31 December 13,482 50,332 15,290 4 79,108

Fully depreciated assets amounted to JD 841,907 as at 31 December 2024 (2023: JD 552,749).(12) (12)
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(12) Intangible Assets

2024

Cost

Balance as at 1 January
Additions

Balance as at 31 December

Accumulated Amortization
Balance as at 1 January
Amortization for the year
Balance as at 31 December
Net Book Value

2023

Cost

Balance as at 1 January
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at 31 December

Accumulated Amortization
Balance as at 1 January
Amortization for the year
Related to disposals
Balance as at 31 December

Net Book Value

(13) Bank Overdrafts

Credit type Due date
Overdraft Sep-25
Overdraft November-25
Overdraft Sep-25
Overdraft November-25
Overdraft November-25
Overdraft April-25
Overdraft August-25
Overdraft October-25
Overdraft December-25
Overdraft May-25

P>
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Software and

Project under Total

Website Construction
JD JD JD

370,381 24,810 395,191
1,370 1,370
371,751 24,810 396,561
343,347 343,347
15,063 15,063
358,410 358,410
13,341 24,810 38,151
361,224 14,160 375,384
11,000 10,650 21,650
(1,843) - (1,843)
370,381 24,810 395,191
325,639 - 325,639
19,551 - 19,551
(1,843) - (1,843)
343,347 - 343,347
27,034 24,810 51,844

The facilities granted to the Group in the form of Overdraft are owed to local banks in exchange for insurance
books issued by the invest bank. The interest rates ranged from 7.25% - 9.5% as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
7.75% - 9.25%). The main objective of these facilities is to finance the Group’ s activity. All these facilities are
due during a year.

(14) Loans
2024 2023
JD JD
Loans payable within one year 38,657,674 27,390,093
Loans payable within more than one year 38,448,245 31,195,864
77,105,919 58,585,957

* The table below shows the loans granted by local banks or financial institutions to finance the Company’s
activity:

- f facilit Maturity d Eacilities limi c Bal 31D I

g(;?l:'; Interest rate Balance as at December 31
2024 2023
JD JD JD
2,000,000 8.13% 1,457,552 1,769,592
2,000,000 8.75% 1,326,655 1,675,388
1,500,000 8.50% 1,219,568 -
2,000,000 8.60% 1,167,623 1,754,814
1,000,000 7.25% 428,060 398,319
2,150,000 9.50% 408,575 1,774,910
1,000,000 8.75% 405,621 544,945
1,000,000 8.50% 308,326 558,655
1,000,000 7.25% 139,958 551,809
250,000 8.50% 129,813 181,618
6,991,751 9,210,050

2024 2023
JD JD

Renewal loan January - 2028 16,000,000 JD 15,999,111 11,750,000
Renewal loan January - 2028 11,500,000 JD 11,475,026 11,495,991
Revolving loan February - 2028 8,000,000 JD 7,999,154 5,434,482
Renewal loan December - 2027 8,000,000 JD 7,997,243 7,571,801
Renewal loan January - 2028 7,000,000 JD 6,970,640 2,601,318
Renewal loan January-2026 5,000,000 JD 4,931,250 4,765,625
Renewal loan November-2026 6,000,000 JD 4,289,484 3,751,773
Renewal loan July-2027 1,500,000 JD 1,499,944 1,275,572
Renewal loan gggf”‘ber ; 4,000,000 JD 4,000,000 3,000,000
Renewal loan January-2028 3,700,000 JD 3,696,667 3,536,195
Renewal loan October-2026 2,500,000 JD 2,291,800 -
Loan* October-25 4,254,000 uUsD 1,701,600 3,403,200
Loan** July-2027 4,254,000 uUsD 4,254,000 -

77,105,919 58,585,957

All these loans are in Jordanian Dinars and USD it is granted by local banks and an international financial
institution with letters of guarantee issued by Invest Bank. The interest rate on the above loans ranges 6.4%
- 9.5% as at 31 December 2024 (December 31, 2023:6% - 9.25%).

* The Company obtained a loan of JD 4,254,000 from (Sanad Fund for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises)
on 20 September 2022, at an interest rate of 6.4%, which is adjustable, and the interest is due every six
months, starting from 5 April 2023, and to be paid in semi-annual payments, to which the first instalment is
due on 5 October 2023 and the last instalment on 6 October 2025.

**The Company obtained a loan of JD 4,254,000 from (Sanad Fund for Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises)
on 19 July 2024 at an interest rate of 6.8% adjustable, and the interest is due every three months starting 5
December 2025, and to be paid in semi-annual payments, to which the first instalment is due on 5 July 2025
and the last instalment on 5 July 2027.
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(15) Bonds

During the year 2024, the Group issued bonds with an amount of JD 4,160,000, with a nominal value of JD
10,000, for a single non-transferable bond for a period of 365 days. Moreover, the interest rate on bonds is
7.5% and due during each six months on 8 July 2024 and 6 December 2025. The bonds were settled on 6

Bonds payable within one year

2024 2023
JD JD
4,160,000 -

December 2025. The full outstanding balance of the bond was paid on the due date.

(16) Other Liabilities

Deposits

Accrued interest
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued dividends

(17) Other Provisions

Lawsuits provision
Vacation provision
Other provisions

*The movement on other provisions during the year was as follows:

2024

Lawsuits provision
Vacation provision
Other provisions

2023

Lawsuits provision
Vacation provision
Other provisions

(18) Income Tax

2024 2023
JD JD
813,250 445,860
471,429 389,393
248,314 73,208
55,032 156,747
18,241 18,301
1,606,266 1,083,509
2024 2023
JD JD
230,000 285,000
39,486 25,514
50,000 50,000
319,486 360,514
Beginning Additi Used During Ending
— Balance —theYear =~ __ Balance
JD JD JD JD
285,000 15,398 (70,398) 230,000
25,514 18,075 (4,103) 39,486
50,000 99 (99) 50,000
360,514 33,572 (74,600) 319,486

(a) Deferred tax assets

Items included as at December 2024

Provision of ECL of financial assets
at amortized cost

Outstanding revenues
Vacation provision

Accrued expenses provisions
Lawsuits provision

Other provision

Interests on lease liabilities

Items included as at December 2023

Provision of ECL of financial assets
at amortized cost

Outstanding revenues
Vacation provision

Accrued expenses provisions
Lawsuits provision

Other provision

Interests on lease liabilities

Beginning Bal- Addit] Used During Ending Bal-
ance theYear =~ _ance
JD JD JD JD
232,357 52,643 - 285,000
19,000 7,736 (1,222) 25,514
50,000 4,157 (4,157) 50,000
301,357 64,536 (5,379) 360,514
Deferred Tax
Balance at Balance
o " Released as at 31 Assets as at
Beginning of  Additions December
the Year Amounts 31 December
2024
2024
JD JD JD JD JD
8,844,688 1,080,545 (293,609) 9,631,624 2,696,855
3,527,181 1,512,046 (346,713) 4,692,514 1,313,904
25,514 18,075 (4,103) 39,486 11,056
14,997 129,609 (21,768) 122,838 34,395
285,000 15,398 (70,398) 230,000 64,400
50,000 3,096 (99) 52,997 14,839
8,015 3,294 (8,015) 3,294 922
12,755,395 2,762,063 (744,705) 14,772,753 4,136,371
Deferred Tax
Balance at Balance
- " Released as at 31 Assets as at
Beginning of  Additions December
the Year Amounts 31 December
2023
2023
JD JD JD JD JD
8,085,957 2,761,574  (2,002,843) 8,844,688 2,476,513
2,642,553 1,257,147  (372,519) 3,527,181 987,611
19,000 7,736 (1,222) 25,514 7,144
8,937 17,803 (11,743) 14,997 4,199
232,357 52,643 - 285,000 79,800
50,000 4,157 (4,157) 50,000 14,000
3,044 8,015 (3,044) 8,015 2,244
11,041,848 4,109,075  (2,395,528) 12,755,395 3,571,511
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Movement on deferred tax assets account during the year is as follows:

2024 2023
JD JD
Balance at 1 January 3,571,511 3,091,718
Additions during the year 773,377 1,150,541
Released during the year (208,517) (670,748)
Balance at 31 December 4,136,371 3,571,511
(b) Income tax provision
The movement on the income tax provision during the year is as follows:
2024 2023
JD JD
Balance at January 2,400,300 1,759,204
Income tax expense 3,625,241 2,970,949
Income tax paid (3,051,740) (2,329,853)
Balance at December 2,973,801 2,400,300

Income tax expense presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income consists of the

following:
2024 2023
JD JD
Tax payable on the year’s profit 3,625,241 2,962,670
Prior year’s taxes - 8,278
Effect of deferred tax assets (564,859) (479,793)
3,060,382 2,491,155

* The deferred tax was calculated as at 31 December 2024 at 28% (2023: 28%) according to the new Income

Tax Law for the year 2018, which came into effect as at 1 January 2019.

(c) Summary of reconciliation between accounting profit and taxable profit:

2024 2023
JD JD
Accounting profit 10,636,433 8,664,004
Amendments 2,302,912 1,912,403
Taxable profit 12,939,345 10,576,407
Tax due on the profit for the year except for dividends from financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (Shares
outside Jordan) 3,623,017 2,961,394
Tax due on dividends of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (shares outside Jordan) at 14% 2,224 1,276
Tax due from profits for the year 3,625,241 2,962,670
Effective tax rate 34% 34%
Statutory tax rate 28% 28%
P>
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(d) Tax Status
Jordan Trade Facilities Company (Parent Company)

The tax returns were audited and the statement was amended with approval for the years 2015 and 2016,
2019.

The company submitted tax returns for the years 2017 and 2018 and they were accepted by the Income and
Sales Tax Department according to the sample system without amendment and the company has no tax
obligations to date.

The company submitted tax returns for the years 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 according to the rules and on the
legally specified date and the Income and Sales Tax Department has not audited the returns to date.

The company submitted the general sales tax returns on the legally specified date, and the Income and Sales
Tax Department audited the returns submitted for the end of 2016, noting that the returns submitted for the
tax periods up to the period 9 + 10 / 2020 are considered acceptable according to the provisions of the law,
and the tax returns related to the subsequent periods are submitted on time and according to the rules.

Jordan Facilities for Leasing Company (Subsidiary)

The Company obtained a final clearance from the Income and Sales Tax Department until the end of the year
2022.

The 2023 tax return was filed properly and on time as required by law.
The Company submitted the general sales tax returns on the legally specified date, and the Income and Sales
Tax Department audited the returns submitted till the end of the year 2022, and the tax returns related to

subsequent periods are submitted on time and according to the rules.

In the opinion of the Group’s management and the tax consultant, the Group will not have any obligations that
exceed the provision taken until 31 December 2024.

(19) Shareholders’ Equity
The authorised, subscribed and paid-up capital

The authorised, subscribed and paid-up capital of the company is 16,500,000 JD, with a nominal value of one
JD per share.

The Company is 97.8% owned by Tamkeen Leasing Company (the parent Company) and the ultimate parent
Company is Invest Bank - Public Shareholding Company.

Statutory reserve

According to the Jordanian Companies Law and the Company’s by-laws, the Group should deduct 10%
of its annual net profit to transfer to the statutory reserve, and continue do so each year provided that the
total deducted amounts for the reserve do not exceed 25% of the Group’s capital. For the purposes of this
law, net profits represent profits before the income tax provision deduction. This reserve is not available for
distribution to shareholders.
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20) Revenues And Commissions From Commercial Financin

And Finance Lease

Interest income
Commissions

(21) Other Revenue

File opening fees

Collection fees, late fines, returned checks, and others
Gain on sale of investment properties

Bad debt income

Instalment postponement fees

Gain on sale of assets foreclosed against defaulted loans
Gain on sale of property and equipment

Credit card revenues

Others

(22) Salaries, Wages And Employees’ Benefits

Salaries and wages

Bonuses and incentives
Group’s share in social security
Health insurance

Others
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Murabahah
2024 2023
JD JD
14,982,686 12,360,442
4,996,290 3,944,295
19,978,976 16,304,737
2024 2023
JD JD
644,416 567,629
512,719 418,239
90,705 31,719
20,272 4,841
9,270 27,976
9,196 685
6,424 18,434
- 446
48,247 41,317
1,341,249 1,111,286
2024 2023
JD JD
1,081,146 1,022,179
663,380 447,774
134,514 129,308
113,306 109,745
17,428 15,272
2,009,774 1,724,278

(23) Other Expenses

-Real estate and life insurance expenses - clients
-maintenance
-Sales tax

-Transportation allowance and remuneration for members of the
Board of Directors

-Communications and postal expenses
-Fees and subscriptions

-Stationery and publications
-Professional fees

-Travel and transportation

-Hospitality

-Commercial commissions
-Advertising

-Audit fees

-Case fees

-Water and electricity

-General Assembly meeting expenses
-Other

(24) Finance Expenses

Interest on borrowing facilities

Interest on lease liabilities (Note 8)

(25) Related Party Transactions And Balances

2024 2023
JD JD

636,121 414,750
101,338 77,586
52,148 48,732
50,000 50,000
42,405 44,771
36,368 27,370
26,067 24,058
21,817 21,378
20,230 22,187
19,460 14,989
14,484 19,207
14,134 13,610
13,250 20,480
16,392 8,250
5,099 9,580
2,752 1,147
126,256 153,252
1,198,321 971,347

2024 2023

JD JD

6,536,291 5,048,392
22,463 28,516
6,558,754 5,076,908

Relevant stakeholders include major group contributors, board members and controlled enterprises by them,
their families or those with significant administrative influence, as well as key management personnel.
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Consolidated statement of financial position

Related Party

31 31
Parent Company December  December
2024 2023
JD JD JD
Financial assets at amortised cost - - 8,439
Borrowings 139,958 139,958 551,809
Current accounts (Cash at banks) 21,723 21,723 2,059,643
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Related Party
Employees,
relatives,
board
members
Sister Parent and their
Company Company relatives 2024 2023
JD JD JD JD JD
Instalments revenue - - 1,641 1,641 910
Expenses of financing
borrowings - 28,743 - 28,743 32,211
Deposit income - 130,644 - 130,644 84,247
An operating-investment
lease contract to finance
the supply chain 13,920 - - 13,920 13,920
Commissions for financial
investments -Invest Bank - 5,000 - 5,000 -
An operating lease contract
— Invest Bank - 31,300 - 31,300 31,300

The group obtained a letter of assurance issued by the ultimate parent company regarding the facilities
granted to the group in the form of overdraft from local banks.

Executive management salaries and remuneration

Salaries and remuneration of the executive management of the Group amounted to JD 431,759 for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: JD 403,060).

(26) Basic And Diluted Earnings Per Share From Profit For The Period
Attributable To Shareholders

2024 2023
JD JD
Profit for the year (JD) 7,576,051 6,172,849
Weighted average number of outstanding shares (share) 16.500.000 16,500,000
0.459 0.374

The basic earnings per share from the net profit for the year equals the diluted earnings as the Group did not
issue any financial instruments that may have an impact on the basic earnings per share.

(27) Contingent Liabilities

At the consolidated financial statements date, the Group has contingent liabilities as follows:

2024 2023
JD JD
Bank guarantees 250,000 2,000

Lawsuits against the Group
Jordan Trade Facilities Company (Parent company):

The value of legal cases filed against the Company amounted to JD 116,389 as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: JD 153,045), while the balance of provisions recorded against these cases amounted to JD
230,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: 220,000 JD) and in the opinion of the management and
the legal counsel of the Company, the Company will not incur any additional obligations in respect of with
these cases.

Jordan Facilities for Leasing Company (Subsidiary)
The value of the cases filed against the Company amounted to JD nil as of 31 December 2024 (31 December
2023: JD 10,001), while the balance of allocations to confront these cases amounted to JD nil as of 31

December 2024 (31 December 2023: JD 65,000), according to the estimation of the management and the
company’s legal advisor. The Company will not have any additional obligations for these issues.

(28) Subsequent Events

The Group extinguished the bonds of the Jordan Trade Facilities Company, a public shareholding company,
which were issued on January 6, 2024, with a total value of JD 4,160,000, and a number of 416 bonds with
a nominal value of JD 10,000 per bond and a fixed interest rate of 7.5%, due on January 6, 2025. On the
maturity date of January 6, 2025, the full balance of the bonds amounting to JD 4,160,000 was paid, in
addition to the interest due for the period from July 9, 2024 to January 6, 2025, amounting to JD 155,572. The
Group paid the full balance of the bonds and the interest due to the beneficiaries on the same date, and thus
the entire aforementioned bond loan was extinguished.
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